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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF LESHA BANK L.L.C. (PUBLIC)

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Lesha Bank L.L.C. (Public) (the “Bank” or “Parent™) and
its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2024, and the consolidated statement of income, consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of income and attribution related to quasi-equity, consolidated statement of changes in equity,
consolidated statement of cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in off-balance sheet assets under
management for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2024 and its consolidated financial performance, and

by the Accounting and Auditing Organisation for Islamic Financial Institutions (AAOIFT) as modified by the Qatar
Financial Centre Regulatory Authority (QFCRA).

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audi of the consolidated financial

Standards Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International
Independence Standards) (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements in the State of Qatar, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code, We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional Jjudgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of

opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided
in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
JSinancial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF LESHA BANK L.L.C. (PUBLIC) (CONTINUED)

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Key audit matters (continued)

| Key AuditMatter
Impairment of financing assets

| How our audit addressed the ey audit matter

At 31 December 2024, the Group’s gross financing
assets amounted to QAR 522 million (2023: QAR 427
million) and the total provision for impairment on the
financing assets amounted to QAR 347 million (2023:
QAR 339 million).

The process for estimating impairment provision on
credit risk associated with financing assets in
accordance with FAS 30 Impairment, Credit Losses and
Onerous Commitments involves significant judgement.

FAS 30 requires use of the Expected Credit Loss
(“ECL”) model for the purposes of calculating
impairment provision. ECL model requires the Group
to exercise significant judgement using subjective
assumptions when determining both the timing and the
amounts of ECL for financing assets. The assumptions
regarding the economic outlook are more uncertain
which increases the level of judgment required by the
Group in calculating the ECL. Due to the complexity of
requirements under FAS 30, and the current situation,
significance of judgements applied and the Group’s
exposure to financing assets forming a major portion of
the Group’s performance, the audit of ECL for
financing assets is a key audit matter.

Refer to the notes to financial statements for:
e Note 4 — Significant accounting policies
e Note 5 - Use of estimates and judgements
e Note 25.6.5 — Inputs, assumptions and techniques
used for estimating impairment

Our audit approach included testing the controls
associated with the relevant processes for estimating the
ECL and performing substantive procedures on such
estimates. We involved our internal specialist where
their specific expertise was required. Our key audit
procedures were as follows:

e We obtained understanding of the Group’s BECL
policy and the design of the controls and tested the
operating effectiveness of relevant controls and
governance around it,

®  We have checked the completeness of the data used
as input for the ECL model and the mathematical
accuracy through the model processes.

e We assessed:
> the Group’s ECL policy including the criteria

of staging and significant increase in credit
risk with the requirements of FAS 30;

» the Group’s forward-looking economic
variables by comparing them on a sample
basis against supporting evidences, where
applicable; and

> the basis of determination of the management
overlays against the requirements of the
Group’s ECL policy.

e For a sample of exposures, we performed
procedures to evaluate:
> appropriateness of exposure at default,

probability of default and loss given default in
the calculation of ECL;

> timely identification of exposures with a
significant increase in credit risk and
appropriateness of the Group’s staging; and
the ECL calculation.

© Assessed the impairment allowance for
individually impaired loans and advances (stage 3)
in accordance with FAS 30.

® Assessed the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures
in relation to FAS 30 by reference to the
requirements of the relevant financial reporting
standards.

Page 2
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF LESHA BANK L.L.C. (PUBLIC) (CONTINUED)

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Key audit matters (continued)

[ Key Audit Matter

| How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Valuation of investments securities carried at fair value

level 3 investments securities carried at fair value
amounted to QAR 906 million (2023: QAR 696
million).

Due to the inherently judgmental nature of the
computation of the fair value of level 3 investment
securities, there is a risk that the fair value and any
related gain or loss recorded in the consolidated
financial statements may be misstated.

The key areas of judgment include:

e  The valuation method and discount rates applied
in terms of determining the fair value of these
assets

®  Assumptions used in the fair value calculation
such as prospective financial information,
expected future cash flows, expected market
conditions, etc.

e The current geopolitical
macroeconomic uncertainties

situation and

Due to the subjectivity and estimation uncertainty in
determining their fair values of the level 3 investment
securities, this is considered a key audit matter.

Refer to the notes to financial statements for:
° Note 4 - Significant accounting policy
® Note 5 — Use of estimates and judgements
e Note 8 — Investment securities
e Note 27 - Fair value of financial instruments

At 31 December 2024, the Group’s carrying value of

Our audit approach included testing the controls
associated with the relevant processes for valuation of
investments and performing substantive procedures on
such estimates. We involved our internal specialist
where their specific expertise was required. Our key
audit procedures were as follows:

e We evaluated the competence and capabilities of
the external valuation experts appointed by the
management.

® We obtained external valuation reports and
consulted our internal specialists whether the
application of methodologies is consistent with
generally accepted valuation methodologies and
prior periods, and that assumptions and inputs used
are consistent, in all material respects, with the
business’ past performance and management
business strategy.

e We agreed the valuation of the unquoted
investments in funds to reports received from Fund
managers.

® We assessed the adequacy of the Group’s
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
including the disclosures of key assumptions,
Jjudgements and sensitivities, by reference to the
requirements of the relevant accounting standards.

Other information included in the Group’s 2024 Annual Report

Other information consists of the information included in the Group’s Annual Report, other than the Group’s
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Management is responsible for the other
information. The Group’s 2024 Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s
report. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated

financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is

required to report that fact.

» or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
a material misstatement of this other information, we are

Page 3
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF LESHA BANK L.L.C. (PUBLIC) (CONTINUED)

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Responsibilities of the management and the Board of Directors for the consolidated financial statements

The management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with FAS issued by AAOIFI as modified by the QFCRA, and for such internal control as the management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

°  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including

the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Page 4
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF LESHA BANK L.L.C. (PUBLIC) (CONTINUED)

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements (continued)
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements (continued)

e Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business units within the Group as a basis for forming an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and review of the audit
work performed for the purposes of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit,

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied .

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Furthermore, in our opinion, the consolidated financial statements provide the information required by the Qatar
Financial Centre Authority Regulations and the Bank’s Articles of Association. We are also of the opinion that proper
books of account were maintained by the Bank. We have obtained all the information and explanations we required
for the purpose of our audit, and are not aware of any violations of the above mentioned regulations or the Articles
of Association having occurred during the year, which might have had a material adverse effect on the Bank’s
financial position or performance

Ty

//wa// 5./)”/) (EY‘ERNST &YOUNG |
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LESHA BANK L.L.C (PUBLIC)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December 2024 (expressed in QAR'000)

al_gow g
LESHA BANK

ASSETS

Cash and bank balances
Financing assets
Investments securities
Investments in real estate
Fixed assets

Intangible assets

Assets held-for-sale
Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES, QUASI-EQUITY AND EQUITY
Liabilities

Financing liabilities

Customers’ balances

Liabilities held-for-sale

Other liabilities

Total Liabilities

QUASI-EQUITY

31 December 31 December

Participatory investment acco JntsERNST & YOUNG
Doha - Qatar

Equity

Share capital 26 JAN 2025

Share premium . )

Legal reserve Stamped for Identification

Investments fair value reserve Purposes O“'y

Retained earnings

Total Equity Attributable to Shareholders of the Bank

Non-controlling interest
Total Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES, QUASI-EQIUTY AND EQUITY

Off-balance sheet assets under management
Contingent liabilities and commitments

Notes 2024 2023
6 3,089,860 2,962,937
7 175,378 88,387
8 3,054,777 2,440,385
9 270,024 264,262
0 11,747 17,396
77 17,619 2,554
12 83,106 387,303
73 119,882 144,849

6,822,393 6,308,073
14 2,439,965 1,862,616
186,904 129,904
12 13,723 112,220
15 164,349 149,229
2,804,941 2,253,969
16 2,693,427 2,827,095
7 1,120,000 1,120,000
80,003 80.003
17 22,256 9,439
(22,769) (3.237)
142,735 30,206
1,342,225 1,236,411
(18,200) (9,402)
1,324,025 1,227,009
6.822,393 6,308,073
8,604,433 6,188,915
22 1145 1

These consolidated financial statements were authorised for issuance by the Board of Directors on 26 January

2025 and signed on its behalf by:

R

Faisal bin Thani AFThani

Chairman

Mohammed Ismail Al Emadi
Chief Executive officer

The attached notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




LESHA BANK L.L.C (PUBLIC)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 (expressed in QAR'000)

ATCIR?
LESHA BANK

CONTINUING OPERATIONS
INCOME

Income from financing assets

Income from placements with financial institutions

Profit on sukuk investments

Profit on financing liabilities

Net income from financing and investing assets

Fee income

Dividend income

Notes

18

Gain on re-measurement of investments at fair value through income statement

Fair value loss on re-measurement of investments in real estate

Gain on disposal of sukuk investments

Gain on disposal of equity investments
Gain on disposal of real estate investments
Net foreign exchange gain

Other income, net

TOTAL INCOME

EXPENSES

Staff costs

Depreciation and amortisation
Other operating expenses
TOTAL EXPENSES

Provision for impairment on financing assets, net of recoveries

Reversal for impairment on other financial assets

Other provisions

PROFIT BEFORE TAX AND ATTRIBUTION TO QUASI-EQUITY

Less: Net profit attributable to quasi-equity
PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

Income tax expense

NET PROFIT FROM CONTINUING OPERATION
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Loss from discontinued operations, net of

NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Bank

Non-controlling interest

Basic/diluted profit per share from continuing operations - QAR

Basic/diluted profit per share from discontinued operations - QAR

Basic/diluted profit per share - QAR

The attached notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

8.7
19
70 6& 11

20

25

25

ERNST & YOUNG

k Doha - Qatar
! 26 JAN 2025

Stamped for Identification
Purposes Only

21

21

21

For the year ended

31 December

31 December

2024 2023
6533 1422
190,029 133,012
109,254 72,597
(123,481) (55.694)
182,335 161,337
60,694 60,935
24,382 20,823
186 5,869
(6.396) -
569
84,567 7,387
912 .
5,567 7,668
31,822 24.0M
384,638 288,030
(75,553) (66.076)
(7.154) (6.129)
(51.321) (21,057)
(134,028) (93.262)
(8.253) (1.840)
2135 2706
(11,100) -
233392 195,634
(114,025) (92,970)
119,367 102,664
119,367 102,664
. (6.173)
119,367 96.491
128,165 94,388
(8798) 2,103
119,367 96,491
0.14 0.091
. (0.007)
0.114 0.084

7




LESHA BANK L.L.C (PUBLIC)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2024 (expressed in QAR'000)

Al _du el i
LESHA BANK

NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Items that may not be subsequently classified to consolidated
income statement
Fair value changes of equity-type investments carried at fair value
through other comprehensive income
Items that may be subsequently classified to consolidated
income statement
Fair value changes of debt-type investments classified as FVTOCI
Fair value changes of investment in real estate reclassifed to
consolidated Income statement

Total other comprehensive income for the year

TOTAL COMREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank
Non-controlling interest
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

For the year ended

31 December 31 December

2024 2023

119,367 96,491

(2,620) -

(3.018) 11,496

(13,894) -

(19,532) 11,496

99,835 107,987

108,633 105,884

(8,798) 2,103

99,835 107,987

ERNST & YOUNG
Doha - Qatar
26 JAN 2025
Stamped for Identification

Purposes Only

The attached notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LESHA BANK L.L.C (PUBLIC)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME AND ATTRIBUTION RELATED TO QUASI-EQUITY colddel b

For the year ended 31 December 2024 (expressed in QAR'000)

LESHA BANK

NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR BEFORE ATTRIBUTION TO QUASI-EQUITY

Less: Income not attributable to quasi-equity

Add: Expenses not attributable to quasi-equity

Net profit attributable to quasi-equity holders before Bank's
Mudaraba Income

Less: Mudarib's share

Add: Support provided by Bank

NET PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO QUASI-EQUITY

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Item that may be subsequenity classified to consolidated
statement of income

Share in the reserve attributable to quasi-equity

TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

TOTAL PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO QUASI-EQUITY

For the year ended

31 December 31 December
2024 2023
233,392 195,634
(87,895) (74,175)
145,497 121,459
(43,649) (36.438)
12177 7,949
114,025 92,970
114,025 92,970
ERNST & YOUNG
Doha - Qatar
26 JAN 2025
Stamped for Identification
Purposes Only

The attached notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

9




oL

%-:O mOmOQ.—:L 'S]U2Wa1RIS |BIDURULY palepljosuoD 3say} Jo 1Jed [eabajul ue aie sajou paydelle ayjg
uoneoNnuap] Joj padurelg
TejeQ) - BYo(q
DNNOA % LSNYA

600'/2Z'L (zov's) LLP'9EZ'L 902'0¢ (t€2'€) 6EV'6 £00'08 000'0ZL'L £20¢ Jaqwadaq L£ 1e adueleg

LLL Lz = # - . 2 = $153491ul Buijjosjuod-uou ul abueyd 18N
(09g°2) - (09€'T) (09g'2) . * . 5 uoIINgLIIUOD spuny 1iodsg pue [e1dog

96¥'LL E 961°LL & 961'LL = . = sjuawisnipe anjea Jie4

5 8 > (6EV'6) = 6EV'6 . = 21952l [eba| 01 Jaysues|

L6796 €01z 88E'V6 88€E'v6 = - = - 1eaf ay) 1oy 1y01d 18N

L9°0ZL°L (aLz'zL) L88CELL (€8€'zs) (€eLpL) = £00°08 oooozLL €207 Asenue[ | 1e aduejeg

SZO'vZE'L (ooz'sL) SZTTTYE'L SELTVL (69L22) 9827z €00°08 0o0o0'ozL'L Y20z Jaquiadaq Lg je aduejeg
(vroz'e) - (voz'e) (voz's) - - - - uoIINGIJIUGD Spuny j1ods pue |e120g
(Lvi'sl) - (ZvL'sl) S8E (zes'sl) - - - sjuswisnipe anjea Jie4

= = = (Z18°zL) - L18°ZL - - aAnlasal jeba| 0] Jajsuel]

L9€'61L (86.'8) SoL'gzL S9L'gzL = % - - Jeak ay 1oy 1youd 19N

600°£ZZ'L (zot's) LLY'9EZ'L 90Z'0€ (£g2'e) 6EV'6 €00'08 000°0ZL'L vzoz Asenuel | je aduejeg

Anba jej0] 5359493u] jueg ays jo (s@sso] CINELTN] BAJID53U wnjwa.ud jejideds

Bunjonauod  sisapjoy Aynba pajejnuwindoe)  anjea Jjey jeba aleys aleys
-uonN 03 ?jgeinguyle 7 sbujuies SIUBLUISIAU|
A3nba jejo paujejay
(000.4VD wI passaldxa) #z0z Jaqwadaq LE papua Jeah ay) Jo4

ANVE YHSI1 ALIND3 NI SIONVHD 40 INFWILVLS dILVYAITOSNOD
T 0 ) [

(2118nd) 2"1°1 MNVE YHS31



LESHA BANK L.L.C (PUBLIC)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2024 (expressed in QAR'000)

& L "‘Il 5] i.
LESHA BANK

For the year ended

31 December

31 December

Notes 2024 2023
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit from continuing operations 119,367 102,664
Net profit from discontinued operations before tax - (6.173)
Net profit for the year 119,367 96,491
Adjustments for non-cash items
Depreciation and amortisation 10&177 7154 6,129
Loss on disposal of Fixed assets 6 24
Gain on disposal of real estate Investments (912) -
Unrealised gain on equity investments (186) (5.869)
Unrealised (profit) /loss on Sharia-compliant risk
management instruments, net (9.924) 19,985
Unrealised loss on investments in real estate 6,396 =
Provision for impairment on financing assets, net 25 8,253 1,840
Reversal for impairment on other financial assets 25 (2135) (2,706)
Other provisions 11,100 -
139,919 115,894
Changes in:
Financing assets (95,244) 114,498
Assets held-for-sale (1,992) 16,177
Other assets 25,006 81,014
Customers' balances 57,000 (180,413)
Liabilities held-for-sale (98,497) (37.767)
Other liabilities 9,940 (49,101)
Net cash from operating activities 36,132 60,302
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of fixed assets & intangible 10&77 (804) (2.819)
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 110 74
Investments securities (617,764) (640,503)
Investment in real estate - (25,000)
Proceeds from disposal of real estate investments 265,128 =
Net change in cash and bank balances with maturity of more than 90 days (67.275) {691.423)
Net cash used in investing activities ERNST & YOUNG (420,605) (1,360,071)
Doha - Qatar
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net change in financing liabilities 2 8 JAN 2025 577,349 1,120,567
Net change in participatory investment accoupts (133,668) 82,166
Net change in non-controlling interest Smped for Identification » m
Net cash from financing activities Purposes Only 443,681 1,203,444
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 59,208 (96,325)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 6 1,892,842 1,989,167
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 6 1,952,050 1.892.842

The attached notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

"




L

%_co w@w&.‘& "S]UaWAIL]S [BIDURULY PRIEPIIOSUOD 953Y3 Jo Jued |esbajul ue ade sajou paysejje ay|
uonedynuap] Joj padurerg
G207 NV 9¢
Iee() - eyo(g
DONNOA % LSNYH
GL6'88L'9 (£98'8¢) (6Lz'21L) S09°/0¢ 0/S'768 988'6€7'S
GZ8'62L'9 (£98'8¢) (S6L°LLL) 125'90¢ 9£6'0/8 0E¥'Z0Z'S ol|oj3i0d sai3undas A3inb3
060'6S “ (¥80'L) 780°L vE9'LT 9S¥r'LE 0104140d S3131INJ3S YYNg
SpuUSWIISIAUY
£207 jusbe ue se pred SWodUf 5S040 / SJUBLLISOAU  EZ07
18quiadaq I IV 29 5 yueg spuUspIN suonenjersy Asenuef |
489/ Y3 Buiinp sjuatanopy
EEV'V09'8 (£¥1'08) (€88'9¢€L) 8ZS'ELL 0Z0'681'¢ SL6°'88L9
8E€8'9/E'8 (Z¥1'0S) (60Z'¥EL) ¥S8°0LL SIS'0ZE'T §Z8'621'9 o1j043J0d sa131ndas A3inb3
S65'/2¢ - (v£9'7) 492 505891 060°'6S 011041104 Sa111UNJas ¥N)ng
SjudLUISIAUY
$Z0Z juabe ue se pred WU S5049 / PZ0Z
sjuaLIsaAUy
Jaquiazeq [£ IV 2a4 s, yueg spuapiNg suosjenjeAsy Asenuef |
Jead ayjg bujinp sjuswsAoy
(000.4YD Ul passaldxa) pzoz J9gqwadaq L papua Jeak ayl Jo4
ANYE VHST LNIWIDYNVIN 4IANN SLISSY 1ITHS IINVIVE-440 NI STONVHD 40 INIWILVLS 0ILVAITOSNOD

. —nﬁu.. -4

(2118nd) 21°71 MNVE VHS31



LESHA BANK L.L.C (PUBLIC}

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As-at and for the year ended 31 December 2024 (expressed in QAR'000}

7/ LESHA BANK

1. REPORTING ENTITY

Lesha Bank L.L.C (Public) ("thé Bank™ or "the Parent” or “Lesha Bank") is an isiamic bank, which was established in
the State of Qatar as a limited liability company under license No.30091, dated 4 September 2008, from the Qatar
Financial Centre Authority. The Bank is authorised to conduct the following regulated activities by the Qatar
Financial Centre Regulatory Authority (the "QFCRA"}:

- Deposit taking:
. Providing credit facilities;
. Dealing in investments;

Arranging deals in investments;
. Arranging credit facilities;

Providing custody services;

Arranging the provision of custody services:
. Managing investments;

Advising on investments; and

Operating a collective investment fund.

Al the Bank's activities are regulated by the QFCRA and are conducted. in accordance with Islamic Shari‘a
principles. as determined by the Shari‘a Supervisory Board of the Bank and in accordance with the provisions of
its Articles of Association, The Bank operates through its head office located on 4™ Floor, Tornado Tawer, West
Bay, Doha, State of Qatar. The Bank's issued shares are listed for trading on the Qatar Exchange effective from 27
April 2016 (ticker: "QFBQ").

The consalidated financial statements of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2024 comprise the Bank and
its subsidiaries (together referred to as "the Group” and individually as "Group entities™). The Parent Company-/
Ultimate Controlling Party of the Group is Lesha Bank L.L.C {Public). The Bank had the following subsidiaries as at
31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023:

Effective ownership as at

31 December 31 December Year of

Subsidlaries Activity 2024 2023 incorporation Country
QFB Money Market Fund 1 Money market fund 100.0% 100.0% 2015 Cayman Islands
QFB Tech Fund Ltd. Investments 100.0% 100.0% 2021 Cayman islands
Astor Properties Finance Limited * Financing 29.0% 29.0% 2017 lersey
Astor Properties Holdings. Limited* Holding cempany 29.0% 29.0% 2017 “M‘Mj;ersey
Umm Slal four Accommadation LLC Construction 70.0% 70.0% 0% Qatar

3130 Fairview GEG, 11" Ownirig and teasing real estate 98.0% 97.6% 2018 T UsA
Fairview Investor Corp * Leasing real estate 98.0%. 97.6% 2019 USA

L8 Healthcare Fund 1 investments 100.0% 0.0% 2024 Cayman Istands
QFB investments | Ltd. Investments 100.0% 100.0% 2022 uCayman islangs
QFB Private Equity Ltd. Investments 106.0% 00.0% 2022 Cayman Islands
LB RE Equity Fund % Investments 100.0% 100.0% 2023 Cayman islands
LB Education lnvestrments 100.0% 100.0% 2023 Cayman islands
‘QFB Information Technologies LLC Investments 100.0% 100.0% 2022 ) Qatar

QFB Sharia-Compliant Giobal PE FoF2 “Investments T 100.0% 100.0% 2022 Cayman Islands
QFB Hospitality Ltd. Investments 100.0% 100.0% 2022 Cayman islands
Gateway LLC Ifivestments 100.0% 0.0% 2020 Qatar

LB Credit Fund 1 Investments 100.0% 100.0% 2022 Cayman lslands

'These subsidiaries are related to investment products offered to customers refer ta Note 12,
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LESHA BANK L.L.C (PUBLIC)

i
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2024 (expressed in QAR'C00)

§ e

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Financiat Accounting
Standards ("FAS") issued by the Accounting and Auditing Organisation for Islamic Financial Institutions (*AAGIFI")
as amended by applicable QFCRA rules. In line with the requirements of AAQIFL for matters that are not covered
by FAS, the Group uses the guidance from the relevant International Financial Reporting Standards (*IFRSs") as
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB™).

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for
investment securities classified as Investments at fairvalue through equity. Investments at fair value through income
statement,

Shari‘a-compliant-risk-management instruments and certain Investment in real estate aré carried at fair value.

Functional and presentational currency

The censclidated financial statements are presented in Qatari Riyals {"QAR"), which s the Bank's functional and
presentational currency, and all values are rounded to the nearest QAR thousand except when otherwise indicated.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial statements of
each entity are measured using that functional currency.

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with FAS requires management to make
judgerments, estimates-and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts
of assets, liabikities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Going concern
The Group’s management has made an assessment of the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and is
satisfled that the Group has resources to continue in the business for the foreseeable future, Furthermore, the
management is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the Group's ability to
cantinue as a going concern. Therefore, the consolidated financial statements continue to be prepared on the going
concern basis.

Estimates and underlying assumptiens are reviewed on an ongoing basis, Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected. Information about
significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the
most significant effect.on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements are described in Note 5.

3. CHANGES [N ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are
consistent with those used in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2023, except for the adoption of the following standards and amendments to standards effective from
1]anuary 2024.
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LESHA BANK L.L.C (PUBLIC)
gv‘z% S el iy

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %i;! LESHA BANK
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2024 (expressed in GAR'000} -

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES (Continued)
3.1 New standards, interpretations and amendments issued and effective

311 FAS 1 (Revised 2021) - General Presentation and Disclosures in the Financial Statements

AAQIF] has issued revised FAS 1in 2021. The revised FAS 1 supersedes the eariier FAS 1 General Presentation and
Disclosures.in the Financial Statements of Islamic Banks and Financial Institutions and introduces the concepts of
quasi-equity, off-balance-sheet assets under managément and other comprehensive income to enhance the
information provided to the users of the financial statements.

The Group has adopted the standard and applied changes in certain presentation and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements for the period. The Group shall implement any subsequent guidelines or
amendments to the standard that may be issued by the QFCRA. The adoption of this standard did not have any
significant impact orn recognition and measurement.

Some of the significant revisions to the standard are as follows:

i. Revised conceptual framework is now an integral part of the AAQIFI FASs:

ii. Definition of quasi-equity is introduced as a. broader concept that will include the “unrestricted investrnent
accounts” and other transactions under similar structures. Similarly, the wider term of "off-balance sheet
assets under management” is now being used instead of “restricted investment accounts™

iii. Definitions have been modified and improved:

iv. Concept of comprehensive income has been introduced, with the option to prepare one statement that is a
combination of statement of income and statement of other comprehensive income, or to prepare the two
statements separately. The Group elected to prepare the two statements separately;

v. Institutions other than Banking institutions are zliowed to classify assets and liabilities as current and non-
current;

vi. Disclosure of Zakah and Charity have been relocated to the notes to the financial statements:

vii, True and fair override has been introduced;

viii. Treatment for change in accounting policies. change in estimates and correction of errors has been
introduced;

ix. Disclosures of refated parties, subsequent events and going concern have been improved:

x. Improvement in reporting for foreign currency and segment reporting: and

xi. Presentation and disclosure requirements have been divided into three parts. First part is applicable to all
institutions, second part is applicable only to Islamic banks and similar IFls and third part prescribes the
authoritative status, effective date and amendments to other AAQIFI FASs

3.2  FAS40- Financial Reporting for Islamic Finance Windows

AAOIF] has issued FAS 40 in 2021. The objective of this revised standard is to establish financial reporting
requirements for Islamic finance windows and applicable to all conventional financial institutions providing Islamic
financial services through an Islamic finance window. This standard improves upen and supersedes FAS 18 “Islamic
Financial Services Offered by Conventional Financial Institutions®. The standard does not have any impact on these
consclidated financial statements as it is applicable to Isiamic finance windows,
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LESHA BANK L.L.C (PUBLIC)

. it U Y RET T
NOTES TC THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS :\ﬁff. LESHA BANK

As at and for the year ended 31 December 2024 {expressed in QAR'Q00)

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES (Continued)

3.2 New standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not yet effective and not early adopted

321 FAS 46 - Off-Balance sheet Assets Under Management

AAQIF] has issued FAS 46 in 2023, This standard prescribes the criteria for characterisation of off-balance sheet
assets under management, and the related principles of financial reporting in‘line with the "AACIFI Conceptual
Framewaork for Financial Reporting”. The standard encompasses the aspects of recognition, derecognition,
measurement, selection and adoption of accounting policies, related to off-balance-sheet assets under
management, as well as certain specific aspects of financial reporting such as impairment and onerous
commitments by the institution., The standard also includes the presentation and disclosure requirements
particularly aligning the same with the requirements of the revised FAS T "General Prasentation and Disclosures
in the Financial Statements” in respect of the statement of changes in off-balance sheet assets under
rranagement. This standard, along with, FAS 45 “Quasi-Equity (Including Investment Accounts)”, supersedes the
earlier FAS 27 "Investrnent Accounts™. This standard shall be effective for the financial periods beginning on'or
after 1 January 2026 and shall be adopted at the same time of adoption of FAS 45 - Quasi-Equity (Including
Invéstrment Accounts)

3.2.2 FAS47- Transfer of Assets Between Investment Pools

AAQIFI has issued FAS 47 in 2023. This standard prescribes the financial reporting principles and disclosure
requirements applicable to all transfers between investment pools related to {and where material, between
significant categories of) owners’ equily, quasi-equity and off-balance sheet assets under management of an
institution. It requires adoption and consistent application of accounting policies for such transfers in line with
Shari‘ah principles and rufes and describes general disclosure requirements in this respect. This standard shall be
effective for the financial periods beginning or after 1 fanuary 2026 and supersedes the earlier FAS 21 "Disclosure
on Transfer of Assets™,

16




LESHA BANK L.L.C (PUBLIC) i
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ; ijj; LESHA B“ALNg
As at and for the year ended 31 Decemnber 2024 (expressed in QAR'000)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financiat statements are set out below:

4.1 Basis for consolidation

A Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities) over which the Group has power to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. The.existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the
Group controls another entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred
to the Group. Theyare de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

if. Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise of the financial statements of the Bank and its subsidiaries, All
intra-group balances, transactions, incorne and expenses and unrealised profits and losses resulting from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full an the consolidation. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method as at the acquisition datei.e. when contral
is transferred to the Group. The consideration transferred in the acquisition is generally measured at fair valus,
as are the jdentifiable net assets acquired. Any goodwill that arises is tested annually for impairment. Any gain on
a bargain purchase is recognised in the consolidated income statement immediately. Transaction costs are
expensed as incurred, except if they are refated to the issue of debt or equity securities,

#i. Non-controlling interests

Interests in the equity of subsidiaries not attributable to the parent are reported in consolidated statement of
financial position in owners’ equity as non-controlling interests. Profits or losses attributable to non-controlling
interests are reported in the consolidated income statement as profits or losses attributable to non-controfling
interests. Losses applicable to the non-controliing interests in a subsidiary are allocated to the non-controling
interests even if doing so-causes the non-controlling interests to have a deficit balance.

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests as transactions with equity owners of the Group. For
purchases from non-controlling interests, the difference between any consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in owners' equity. Gains or lossés on
disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded.in owners’ equity.

v Special purpose entities

Special purpose entities (SPEs) are entities that are created to accomplish a narrow and well-defined objective
such as the securitisation of particular assets, or thé execution of a specific borrowing or investment transaction
and usually voting rights are relevant for the operating of such entities. An investor that has decision-making
power over an investee and exposure to variability of returns determines whether it acts as a principal or as an
agent to determine whether there is a linkage between power and returns, The Group iy its-ordinary course of
business may manage an asset or a business for the benefit of stakeholders other than its equity holders through
an agency (usually investment agency) or similar arrangement. Control does not include situations whergby the
institution has the power, but such power is exercisable in a fiduciary capacity, and not for the variable returns to
the institution itself. Performance incentives receivable by an.agent are in a fiduciary capacity, and hence not
considered to be variable returns for the purpose of controf assessment The Group in jts fiduciary capacity
manages. and administers assets held in trust and other investment vehicles on behalf of investors. The financial
statements of these entities are usually not included in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES FO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS rﬁséi‘; LESHA BANK
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2024 {expressed in QARQ00) -

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41 Basis for consolidation (Continued}

V. Loss of control !
When the Group losses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, any
non-controlling interasts and the other comnponents of equity. Any surplus or deficit arising on the loss of control
is recognised in consolidated incorne statement. Any intérest retained in the former subsidiary, is measured at
fair value when control is lost. Subsequently it is accounted for as an equity-accounted investee or in accordance
with the Group's accounting policy far investment securities depending on the level of influence retained.

Vi, Equity accounted investees

This comprise investment in associates and joint ventures. Associates are those entities in which the Group has
significant influence, but not control or joint centrol, over the financial and operating policies. Significant
influence is presumed to exits when the Group holds between 20% and 50% of the voting power of another entity.
A joint venture is an arrangement in which the Group has joint control, where the Group has rights to the net
assets of the arrangement, rather than rights to its assets and obligations for its labilities.

Associates and Joint ventures are accounted for under equity method. These are initially recognised at cost and
the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor's share of the profit or loss of the
investees after the date of acquisition. Distributions received from an investees reduce the carrying amount of
the investment. Adjustments to the carrying amount may also be necessary for changes in the investor’s
proportionate interest in the investees arising from changes in the investee's equity. When the Group's share of
losses exceeds its interest in an equity-accounted investees, the Group’s carrying amount is reduced to nil and
recognition of further iosses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the equity-accounted investees. Equity accounting is discontinued
when an associate is classified as held-for-sale.

Vi, Transactions eliminated on consofidation and equity accounting

Intra-group balarices and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses (except for foreign currency
translation gains or losses) from intra-group transactions with subsidiaries are eliminated in preparing the
consalidated financial statements. Intra-group gains on transactions between the Group and its equity-accounted
investees are eliminated £o the extent of the Gro'up's interest in the investees. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment. Accounting
policies of the subsidiaries and equity- accounted investees have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

4.2 Foreign currencies

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign curréncies are translated into Qatari Riyals at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of
the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Qatari Riyals
at the rates ruling at the date of consolidated financial position.

All differences from gains and losses resuiting from settlement of such transactions and from the translation at
vear-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the consolidated income statement. Non-menetary items that are measured in terms of histcrical cost in foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency, including equity investments, are translated using the exchange rates
at the date when the fair vaiue was determined. Effects of exchange rate changes on non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are recorded as part of the fair value gain or loss.

Group companies
The resuits and financial position of all the Group entities (none of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary
economy) that have a local currency different from the presentational currency are translated as follows:

° Assets and liabilities for each financial position presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of
that financial position,

. Income and expenses for each income statement are translated at average exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

. All resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separaie component of the consclidated statement
of changes in owners’ equity.

4.3 Investment securities
(7} Categorization and classification

FAS 33 - “Investment in sukuk, shares and similar instruments” contains classification and measurement approach
for investments in sukuk, shares and similar instruments that reflects the business model in which such
investments are managed and the underlying cash flow characteristics.

The Group categorizes each investment as:

(a} equity-type instruments:
(b) debt-type instruments {including monetary and non-monetary); and
(c) other investment instruments,

Debt-typeinstruments are a type of investment instruments, whereby the transaction structure results in creation
of a monetary or non-monetary Hability. Equity-type instruments are the instruments that evidence a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all its liabilities and quasi-equity balances, including ordinary
equity instruments and such other structured investment instruments that classify as equity instrument. Other
fnvestment instrurnents are such investment instruments which do not meet the definition of either debt-type or
equity-type instruments.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
4.3 Investment securities (Continued)
(i) Categorization and classification (continued)

Undess irrevocable.initial recognition choices provided in the standard are exercised, an institution shall classify
investments as subsequently measured at either of (i) amortised cost, (i) fair value through other comprehensive.
income or {iii) fair vajue through income statement, on the basis of both:

(a) the Group's business model for managing the investments; and

(b} the expetted cash flow characteristics of the investment in line-with the nature of the underlying Islamic
finance contracts,

Classification

investments are classified based on the Group’s assessment, of the business model within which the investments

are managed, and assessment of whether the gontractual terms of the investment represents either a debt-type

instrument or other investment instrument having reasonably determinable effective yield.

Investments in debt-type instruments are classified into the following categories: 1) at amortised cost or 2) at fair
value through othér comprehensive income.

Amortised cost
An investment shall be measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

(a) the investment is held within a business model whose objective is o hold such investment in order to
collect expected cash flows tiil maturity of the instrument; and

{b) the investment represents either a debt-type instrument or other investment instrument having
reasonable determinable effective yield.

Fair value through other comprehensive income ("FVOC!™)
An investment shall be measured at FVOCH if both &f the following conditions are met:

(a) the.investment is held within 2 business model whase abjective is achieved by bath collecting expected
cash flows and selling the investment; and

(b} the investment represents a non-monetary debt-type instrument or other investment instruyment having
reasondble deterrinable effective yield.

Fair value through income starement (“F Vis™)
An investment shall be measured at FVIS unless if is measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI or if irrevocabte
classification at initial recognition is applied.

Irrevocable classification at initial recognition
The Group may make an irrevocable election to designate a particular investrient, at initial recognition, being:

(a} an equity-type instrument that would otherwise be measured at FVIS, to present subsequent changes in
other comprehensive income: and

(b) a non-maorietary debt-type instrument or other investment instrument, as measured at FVIS if doing so
eliminates or significantlyreduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise
from measuring assets or correlated liabilities or recognizing the gains and losses on them on different
bases,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Asat and for the year-ended 31 December 2024 (expressed in QAR'000)

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

4.3 Investment securities (Continued)
{(i7) Recognition and de-recognition

Investment securities are recognised at the trade date i.e. the date that the Group contracts to purchase or sell
the asset, at which date the Group becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument,

Investment securities are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or where the Group has transferred substantialiy all risk and rewards of ownership

(it} Measurement

Initial recognition
Investment securities are injtially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs, except for transaction costs
incurred to acquire investments at FVIS which are charged to consolidated income staterment,

Subsequent measurement

Investments at FVIS are remeasured at fair value at the end of each reporting period and the resultant
remeasurernent gains or i0sses is recagnised in the consclidated income statement in the period in which they
arise. Subsequent to initial recognition, investments classified at amortised cost are measured at amortised cost
using the effective profit method fess any impairment allowance. All gains orlosses. arising from the amortisation
process and those arising on de-recognition or impairment of the investments, are recognised'in the consolidated
incorme staterment.

QFCRA regulations with respect to accounting treatment of equity investments at fair value through equity

QFCRA issued an instruction dated 4 October 2020 on accounting treatment for investments incequity instruments
to ensure that harmonisation is achieved between QFCRA-regulated conventional banks and Istamic banks.

FAS 33's exemption to carry equity investments at cost less impairment, when a reliable measure of fair value
when on a continuous basis cannot be determined, was removed.

Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) are not reported separately from other changes in fair
value and are reported as part of fair value reserve within equity statement,

Cumulative gains and losses recognised as part of fair value reserve within equity are transferred to retained
earnings on disposal of equity investments at fair value through equity.

Investments at FVOC!] are remeasured at their fair values at the end of each reporting period and the resultant
gain or |oss, arising from a change in the fair value of investments are taken through other comprehensive income
and presented in a separate fair value reserve within equity.

The Group may elect to present in the statement of changes in equity changes in the fair value of certain
investments in equity-type instruments that are not held for trading. The election is made on an instrumentby-
instrument basis on initial recognition and is irrevocable. Gains and losses on such equity-type instruments are
never subsequently reciassified to consolidated income staterment, including on disposal, However, cumulative
gains and losses recognised in fair value reserve are transferred to retained earnings on disposal of an investment.
Impairment tosses (and reversai of impairment losses) are not reported separateiy from other changes in fair
value. Dividends, when representing a return on such investments, continue to be recognised in consolidated
income statement, unless they clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment, in which case
they are recognised in consolidated statement of changes in equity.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.3 Investment securities {Continued)

{ifi) Measurement (Continued)

For debt type investments classified as FVOC!, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity is transferred to the consolidated incorme statement.,

(v} Measurement principles

Amortised cost measurement

The amortised cost-of a financial asset or fiability is the amount at which the financial asset or liability is measured
at injtial recognition, minus capital repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective
profit method of any difference between the initial amount recognised and the maturity amount, minus any
reduction for impairment. The effective profit rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. The caiculation of the effective profit rate inciudes all
fees and points paid or received that are an integrai part of the effective profit rate.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or an obligation settied between well informed
and willing parties (seller-and buyer} in an arm’s length transactien. The Group measures the fair value of guoted
investments using the market bid price for that instrument at the close of business on the consolidated statement
of financial pesition date. For investment where there is no quoted market price, a reasonable estimate of the fair
value is'determined by reference to the current market value of another instrument, which is substantially the
same ar is based on the assessment of future cash flows. The cash equivalent-values are determined by the Group
by discounting future cash flows at current prefit rates for contracts with similar term and risk characteristics.

4.4 Financial assets and liabilities

Recognition
Financial assets and liabilities are recognised on the trade date at which the Group becomes a party of the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

De-recognition
A financiat asset (or, where applicable, a part of 2 financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised where:

a the right to receive cash fiows from the asset has expired; or

. the Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay
them in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through’ arrangement; or

. the Group has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset and either: (a} has transferred
substantially all the risks -and rewards -of the assets, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is
recognised to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement in the asset.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.4  Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

A financial liability is derecognised when the obiigation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are only offset, and the net amounts reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and
the Group intends to either settle these on a net basis or intends to realise the asset and settle the liahility
simultaneousty. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable
in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Bank or the
counterparty.

4.5 Cash and.cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents as referred to in the consolidated statement of cash flows comprise of cash and
balances with banks and amounts of placements with financial institutions with an original maturity of three
months or less, Placements with financial institutions comprise placerments with banks in the form of Wakala and
Murabaha investments. They are stated at cost plus related accrued profit and net of provision for impairment, if
any.

4.6 Due from banks

Due from banks represent amounts of placements with financial institutions with an original maturity more than
three months. Due from banks placements are invested under Wakala, Murabaha and Mudaraba terms, They are
stated at cost pius related accrued profit and net of provision for impairment, if any.,

4.7 Financing assets
Financing activities comprise Murabaha-and ljarah contracts:

Due from Murabaha contracts

Murabaha receivables are stated at their gross principal amounts less any amount received, provision for
impairment, profit in suspense and unearned profit. These receivables are written off and charged against specific
provisions only in circumstances where all reasonable restructuring and collection activities have been exhausted,
any recoveries from previously written off financing activities are written back to the specific provision, The Group
considers the promise made in Murabaha to the purchase orderer as obligatory.

Due from [farah contracts

liarah receivables arise from financing structures when the purchase and immediate iease of an asset aré at cost
plus an agreed profit (in total forming fair value). The amount is settled on a deferred payment basis. jarah
receivable-are carried at the aggregate of the minimum lease payments, less deferred income (in total forming
amortised cost) and impairment allowance (if any). ljarah income is recognised on time-apportioned basis over
the lease period. Income related to non-performing accounts is excluded from the consolidated income

statement.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.8 impairment

Impairment of financial assets (other than equity type of investments classified as fair value through equity)
The Group assesses impairment at each financial reporting date whenever there is objective evidence that a
specific financial asset or a group of financial assets may be impaired.

The Group applies a three-stage approach to measuring credit losses on financial assets carried at amortised cost.
Assets migrate through the following three stages based on the change in financing assets quality since initial
recognition.

Stage 1: 12 months ECL - not credit impaired

Stage 1 includes financial assets on initial recognition and that do net have a significant increase in credit risk
since the initial recognition or that have low credit risk. For these assets, ECL aré recognised on the gross carrying
amount of the asset based on the expected credit losses that result from defauit events that are possible within
12 months after the reporting date. Profit.is computed on the gross carrying amount of the asset.

Stage 2: Lifetime ECL - not credit impaired

Stage 2 inciudes finanicial assets that have had a significant increase in credit risk (SICR} since initial recognition
but that do not have objective evidence of impairment. For these assets, lifetime ECL are recoghised, but profit is
still calculated on the gross carrying amount of the asset. Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses that result
from all possible default events over the expected life of the financial instrument.

Stage 3: Lifetime ECL - credit impaired
Stage 3 includes financial assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date. For these
assets, lifetime ECL are recognised.

Financing assets carried at amortised cost are impaired when their carrying amounts exceed their expected
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective profit rate, Subsequent
recovery of impairment losses are recognised through the consolidated income statement, the reversal of
impairment losses shall not result in a carrying amount of the asset that exceeds what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment of equity type of investrnents classified as fair value through equity

In case of equity investments classified as fair value through equity, objective evidence would include a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment below its carrying amount. The determination of what is
significant or prolonged requires judgement and is assessed for each investment separately.

Where there is evidenice of impairment, the cumulative [oss - measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the
consolidated income statement - is removed from equity and recognised in the consolidated income statement.
Impairment losses on equity investrents are not reversed through the consolidated income statement; increases
in their fair value after impairment are recognised directly in the fair value reserve in the consolidated statement
of changes in owners’ equity.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
of a non-financial asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an
asset is required, the Group makes an estimate of the asset's recoverable amount. Where the carrying amount of
an asset (or cash-generating unit) éxceeds its recoverabie amount, the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.8 Impairment {continued)

Restructured financial assets
If the terms of 3 financial asset are renegotiated or modified or an existing financial asset is repiaced with a new
one due to financial difficulties of the financed counterparty, then an assessment is made of whether the financial
asset should be derecognized and ECL are measureéd as follows:
® If the expeécted restructuring will not result in derecogriition of existing.asset, then the expected cash
flows arising from the maodified financial asset are included incalculating the cash shortfails from existing
asset:
® Ifthe expected restructuring will result in'derecognition of the existing asset, then the expected fairvalue
of the new asset js treated as the final cash flow from the existing financial asset at the time of its
derecognition, This amount is included in calculating the cash shortfalls from the existing financial asset
that are discounted from the expected date of derecognition to. the reporting date using the original
effective profit rate of the existing financial asset.,

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each financial position date as to whether there is any
indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no lenger exist or may have decreased. lf such
indication exists, the recoverabie amount is estimated. A previcusly recagnised impairment [oss is reversed anly
if there has been a change. in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses refating to goodwill cannot be reversed for subsequent increases in the recoverable
amount in future perijods.

4.9 Investment in real estate

Investment in real estate comprises of building and other related assets-which are held by the Group to earn
rentals and/ or are expected to benefit from capital appreciation. Initially investments are recognised at cost
including directly attributable expenditures. Subsequently to initial recognition, investments are carried at fair
value. The fair value of investments is re-measured at each reporting date and the difference between the carrying
value and fair value is recognised in the consolidated statement of changes in owners' equity under property fair
value reserve.

In case of losses. they are then recognised in equity under property fair value reserve to the extent of availability
of the reserve through earlier recognised gains assumed, in case such fosses exceeded the amount available in the
equity fair value reserve for a particular investrnent in real estate, excess losses are then recognised in the
consoiidated income statement under unrealised re-measurement losses on investments,

Upon occurrence of future gains, unrealised gains refated to the current period are recognised in the consolidated
income statement to the extent of crediting back previously recognised losses in the consolidated income
statement and excess gains then are recognised in the equity under property fair value reserve,

Investment in real estate is derecognised when they have been disposed off or transferred to investment in reat
estate-held for sale when the investment in real estate is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
in real estate along with any avajlable fair value reserves attributable to that investment are recognised in the
consolidated income statement in the year of retirement or disposal.

Investment property acquired through ljarah

Real estate investment property held by the Bank as a lessee is initially recognised at cost. The Bank has elected
to subsequently measure these assets at fair value with any subsequent unrealized gain or {oss to be recognized
directly in-equity under ‘property fair value reserve’.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
410 Assets held-for-sale and discontinued operations

Classification

The Group classifies non-current assets or disposal groups as held-for-sale if the carrying amount is expected to
be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use within twelve months,
which can be extended in certain circumstances beyond due to events outside of Group’s control and there is
evidence that the Group is still committed to the plan to sell the non-current assets or disposal groups.

A disposal group is a group of assets to be disposed of, by sale or otherwise, together as a group in a single
transaction, and liabilities directly associated with thiose assets that will be transferred in the transaction.

If the criteria for classification as held for sale are no longer met, the entity shall cease to classify the asset (or
disposal group) as held for sale and shall measure the asset at the lower of its carrying amount before the asset
{or disposal group) was classified as heid-for-sale, adjusted for any depreciation, recognised or revaluations that
would have been recognised had the asset (or disposal group) not been classified as held-for-sale and its
recoverable amount at the date of the subsequent decision not to sell.

Any impairment loss on a disposal group is aflocated first to goodwill, and then to the remaining assets and
lizbilities on a pro rata basis, except that no loss is allocated to financial assets and investment property carried
at fair value, which continue to be measured in accordance with the Group's other accounting policies. Impairment
losses on initial classification as held-for-sale and subsequent gains and losses on remeasurement are recognised
inthe consolidated income statement. Gains are nat recognised in excess of any cumulative impairment loss.

Measurement

Non-current assets or disposal groups classified as held-for-sale; other than financial instruments, are measured
at the lower of its cafrying amount and fair value fess costs to sell. Financial instruments that are non-current
assets and ‘held-for-sale’ continue to be measured in accordance with their stated accounting policies. On
classification of equity-accounted investee as held-for-sale, equity accounting is ceased at the time of such
classification as held-for-sale. Non-financial assets (i.e. intangible assets, equipment) are no longer amortised or
depreciated.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group's business, the operations, and cash flows of which can be

clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and which:

- represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations;

- is part of a single coordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical area of
operations: or

- s a subsidiary acquired exclusively witha view to re-sale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs on disposal or when theé operation meets the criteria to be
classified as held-for-sale, if earlier. When an operation is classified as a discontinued operation, the comparative
consolidated income statement is re-presented as if the operation had been discontinued from the start of the
comparative year.

26




LESHA BANK L.L.C (PUBLIC)

. . i i
NOTES TO THE CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ,,":'éﬁ?-f LESHA BANE
As at end for the year ended 31 Decembier 2024 {expressed in QAR000)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
4.11 Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accurnulated depreciation and impairment charges (if any). Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are
included in the assets’ carrying amaunt or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably.

All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated income statement during the financial year in
which they are incurred. The Group depreciates fixed assets except for land, on a straight-line basis over their
estimated usefut lives as foliows:

Category description Years
Equipment 3-5
Furniture and fixtures 3-10
Building renovations 5-10
Mator vehicles 5

412 Intangible assets

Intangible assets include the value of computer software and intangible assets that were identified'in the process
of a business combination. The cost of intangible assets is their fair value as at the date of acquisition. Foliowing
initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to write down the cost of intangible assets to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Category description Years

Software and core banking system 3-10
413 Customer current accounts
Balances in customer current accounts do not carry any return and are recognised when received by the Group.

The transactions are measured as the amount received by the-Group at the time of contracting. At the end of the
reporting pericd. these accounts are measured at amortised cost.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

414 Quasi-equity

Quasi-equity is an element of the financial statements that represents participatory contributions received by an
institution on a profit sharing or participation basis. It has:

- primary characteristics of equity i.e., in case of loss (unless negligence / misconduct / breach of
contractual terms is proved), the Group is not liable to return the fost funds to the fund providers and the
fund providers share the residual interest in the underlying assets or business;

- certain characteristics of a liability i.e., it has a maturity or a put option of redemption / liquidation;.and

- certain specific features i.e., the rights of the fund providers are limited only to the underlying assets or
business and not on the whole of the institution, as well as, they do not have cértain rights associated only
with owners’ equity.

All.contributions of quasi-equity holders are measured by the amount received during the time of contracting. At
the end of the financial period; the equity of quasi-equity holders is measured at the amount received plus share
of profit.and related reserves less amounts settled.

Quasi-equity holders include participatory investment accounts {unrestricted investment accounts and cther on-
balance-sheet investment accounts).

Participatory investrment accounts

Participatory investment accounts are funds hetd by the Group, which it can invest at its own discretion. The
participatory investment account holders authorises the Group to invest the account holders™ funds in a manner
which the Group deems appropriate without laying down any restrictions as to where, how and for what purpose
the funds should be invested.

The Group charges a management fee (Mudarib fees) to participatory investment account helders, Of the total
income from investment accounts, the income attributable to account holders is allocated to participatory
investment accounts after setting aside provisions and deducting the Group's share of income .as Mudarib. The
allocation of income is determined by the management of the Group within the allowed profit-sharing limits as
per the terms and conditions of the investment accounts.

Up to 31 December 2023, participatory investment accounts were referred to as Equity of unrestricted investrent
account holders.

4.15 Off-balance-sheet assets under management

Off-balance-sheet assets under management represents funds received by the Group from third parties for
investment in specified products as directed by the investment account holders. These assets are managed in 2
fiduciary capacity and the institution has no entitlerment to these assets. Clients bear all of the risks and earn all
of the rewards on these investments, Off-balance-sheet assets under management are not included in the
consolidated statement of financial position since the Group does not have the right to use or dispose these
investments except within the conditions of the contract between the Group and its clients.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.16 Share capital and reserve

The Group has issued ordinary shares that are classified as equity instruments. Incremental external costs that
are directly attributable to the issue of these are recognised in equity,

Legal reserve

In accordance with the Bank's Articles of Association, up to 10% of the net profit for the year may be transferred
tolegal reserve each year until this reserve is equal to 50% of the paid-up share capital. The reserve is not available
to distribution except in the circurmnstances stipulated in the Bank's Articles of Association.

Dividends on ordinary shares
Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the period in which they are approved by the Bank's
equity holders.

4.17 Recognition of income

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
revenue can be reliably measured. Income earned by the Group is recognised on the following basis:

Incorme from financing activities

Murabaha

Profit from Murabaha transactions is recognised when the income is both contractually determinable and
gquantifiable at the commencement of the transaction. Such income is recognised on a time-apportioned basis
over the period of the transaction. Where the income from a contract is not contractually determinable or
quantifiable, it is recognised when the realisation is reasonably certain or when actually realised. Income related
to non-performing accounts is excluded from the consolidated income statement.

fjarah
ljarah incomeis recognised on a time-apportioned basis over the lease period. Income refated to non-performing
accounts is excluded from the consolidated income statement,

Income from placements with financial institutions
income from short term placements is recognised on a time apportioned hasis over the period of the contract
based on the principat amounts outstanding and the expected profits.

Rentaf income
The Group recognises rental income from properties according to the rent agreements entered between the
Group and the tenants on an accrual basis over the period of the contract.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the Group’s right to receive the dividend is established,

Fee income
Fees are generally recognised on an accrual basis when the service has been provided.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

418 Employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

The Group provides for its contribution to the State administered retirerment fund for Qatari employees in
accordance with the retirement law, and the resuiting charge is included within the staff costs in the consolidated
income statement. The Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised when they are due.

Employeeé’s end of service benefits

The Group establishes a pravision for all end of service benefits payable to employees in accordance with the
Group’s policies which comply with laws and regulations applicable to the Group. Liability is calculated on the basis
of an individual employee’s salary and period of service at the financial position date. The provision far employees’
end of service benefits is included within other {iabilities.

4,19 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, and it is probable-that an outflow of resources embedying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

4.20 Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabitities include guarantees. letters of credit, Group's obligations with respect to unilateral promise
to buy/sell currencies, profit rate swaps and othérs: Thase do not constitute actual assets or liahifities at the
consolidated statement of financial position date except for assets and obligations relating to fair value gains or
losses on these derivative financial instruments.

4.21 Shari’a-compliant-risk-management instruments

Shari’a-compliant-risk-management fnstruments, including unilateral/bilateral promises to buy/sell currencies,
profit rate swaps, currency options are carried at their fajr vatue. All Shari'a-cornpliant-risk-management
instruments are carried as assets-when fair value is positive, and as liabilities when fair value is negative. Changes
in the fair value of these instruments are included in the consolidated income statement for the year (Net foreign
exchange gain / (loss}).

4.22 Segment reporting

An operating segment is'a component of thé Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn
revenues and incur expenses, including revenues ard expenses that felate to transactions with any of the Group's
other components, whose operating results are reviewed regularly by the senior management to make decisions
about resources allocated to each segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial
information is available. Segment reporting aré disclosed in Note 28.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

4.23 Income tax

(a) Currentincome tax

The Bank is subject to income tax in Qatar in accordance with Decree no 13 for the year 2010 of the Ministry of
Economy.and Commerce addressing QFC Tax regulations applicable as of 1 January 2010, Income tax expense is
charged to the consoiidated income statement, '

As per applicable Tax Laws and regulations, listed companies are exempt from income tax.

(b) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method for tax loss carry forwards and temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax assets for deductible temporary differences and tax loss carry forwards are recorded only to the
extent that it is probabie that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductions can be utilised.

4.24.  Zakah

Zakah is directly borne by the equity holders. The Group does not coliect or pay Zakah on behalf of its equity
holders in accordance with the Articles of Association.

5. USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

In the preparation of the consciidated financial statements, the Group makes estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events.

(a) Judgements

Establishing the criteria for determining whether credit risk on an-exposure subject to credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, determining methaodelogy for incorperating forward looking information
into. measurement of ECL and selection and approval of models used to measure ECL refer to note 4.8 and note
25.6.5 for more information ,

(i Ciassification of investments

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management decides on acquisition of an investment
whether it should be classified as investments carried at fair value through income statement or investments
carried at Tair value through equity or investments carried at amortised cost. The classification of each investment
reflects the management’s intention in relation to each investment and is subject to different accounting
treatments based on such classification.

(i) Special purpose entities

The Group sponsors the forrmation of special purpose entities (SPE’s) primarily for the purpose of allowing clients
to hold investments. The Group provides corporate administration, investment management and advisory services
to these SPE’s, which involve the Group making decisions on behalf of such entities. The Group administers and
manages these entities on behalf of its clients, who are by and large third parties and are the economic
beneficiaries of the underlying investments. The Group does not consolidate SPE's that it does not have the power
to control. in determining whether the Group has the power to control an SPE, judgements are made about the
objectives of the SPE's activities, its exposure to the risks and rewards, as well as about the Group intention and
ability to make operational decisions for-the SPE and whether the Group derives benefits fram such decisions.

(iii} Impairment of equity investments at fair value through equity - refer to note 4.3,
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5. USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b} Estimations

{1 Impairment of exposures subject to credit risk carried at amortised cost

Determining inputs into ECL measurement model including incorporation of forward-looking information refer to
note 4,8 and note 25.6.5 for more infarmation.

(i) Measurement of fair value of unguoted equity investments

The group determines fair value of equity investments that are not quoted in active markets by using valuation
technigues such as discounted cashflows, income approach and market approaches. Fair value estimates are
made at a specific point in tirhe, based on market conditions and information about the investee companies, These
estimates are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and matter of significant judgment and therefore,
cannot be determined with precision. There is no certainty about future events such as continued operating
profits and financial strengths. It is reasonably possible based on existing knowledge, that outcemes within the
next financial year that are different from assumptions could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of the investmerits. In case where discounted cash flows models have been used to estimate fair values,
the future cashflows have been estimated by the management based on information form and discussion with
representatives of investee companies and based on the latest available audited and unaudited financial
statements. The basis of valuation has been reviewed by the management in terms of the appropriateness of the
methodology, soundness of assumptions and correctness of calculations refer to note 27,

Valuation of equity investments are measured at fair value through equity which involves judgment and is normally

based on one of the following:

- Valuation by independent external value for underlying properties / projects;

- Recent arms-length market transaction;

- Current fair value of another contract that is substantially simiar:

- Present value of expected cash flows at current rates applicable for items with similar terms and risk
characteristics: or

- Application of other valuation models,

6. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Note 31 December 31 December
2024 2023
Cash in hand 30 35
Balances with banks (current accounts) 67,416 257716
Placements with financial institutions 3,026,345 2,708,557
Provision for impairment 2565 (3,931) (4.371)
3,089,860 2962937
less: cash and bank balances with maturity of more than 90 days (1,141,741) {1.074.466)
Add: provision for impairment (non-cash) 3,931 4371
Cash and cash equivalents 1,952,050 1,892,842

Placernents with financial institutions represent inter-bank placements in the form of Wakata and Murabaha.
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7. FINANCING ASSETS
31 December 31 December
Note 2024 2023
Murabaha financing 352,578 310,625
Deferred investment sales 179,132 90,087
Others 31,527 49,973
Total financing assets 563,237 450,685
Deferred profit (40,820) (23,487)
Provision far impairment on financing assets 26.6.5 (347,039) {338,811)
Net financing assets 175,378 88,387
8. INVESTMENTS SECURITIES
31 December 31 December
Nore 2024 2023
Classified as fair value through Incorne statement
- Equity type (unquoted) 627424 424,978
- Fund type 279,180 273410
906,604 698388
Debt-type classified at amortised cost
- Debt type sukuk investments (iii) 41,860 100,409
Accrued profit 854 1,090
Unamortised premiums, net 107 455
Altowance for impairment 2565 (1,094) (1,.288)
41727 100,666
Classified as falr vafue through other comprehensive income
- Equity type (quoted) (i) 51,908 -
- Equity type {unquoted) 79,973 79,385
- Debt type sukuk investments (iii) 1,974,565 1561.946
2,106,446 1,641.331
3,054,777 2,440,385

(i} Profit on re-measurement of investments at fair value through income statement for the year ended 31
Decernber 2024 was QAR 0.2 million (2023: QAR 5.9 million).

(it) During the year ended 31 December 2024, the bank recorded a positive fair value reserve of QAR 1.9 million
{2023: Nil) on listed equity investments.

{iif) During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Bank recognized a positive fair value reserve of QAR 3.0 milfion
(2023: a positive fair value of QAR 26.6 million) related to these sukuk investments. Sukuk investments of
nominal vaiue of QAR 697.4 million {2023: QAR 147.8 million) and fair value of QAR 708.9 million (2023: QAR 153.6
million} of the Group have been pledged as security for bank financing liability of QAR 587 millien (2023: QAR
109 miltion).
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8. INVESTMENTS SECURITIES (Continued)

Movermnents in the investments at fair value are as follows:

31 December 2024

31 Decemnbar 2023

[nvest-

Totat Invest-  Investments Toral

ments at Investments ments at at fair value

Fair value at fair value. fair value through

throtugh through through income

equity Income equity staternent
At the beginning of the year 1,641,331 698,388 233919 958,312 665,762 1624074

Additions:
Sukuks, net AN118 - 41,118 704,966 - 704,966
Equity investment: 55,116 372,607 427,723 8918 139,066 147,984
Disposal - {138,089) (138,069) - (128.916) (128.916)
Allowancefor impairment 1,501 - 1501 {1.874) - (1,874)
Fair value adjustments (2,620) {26,322} (28,942) {28.991) 22.476. (6,315)
At the end of the year 206,446 906,604 3,013,050 1641331 698,388 2.339.719
8.1 Gain on disposal of equity investments

During the year, the Bank disposed its equity investments with total carrying value of QAR 138

Jmillfors (2023: QAR

128.9 million) and recognized a gain on disposal of equity investments of QAR 57,7 miltion {2023: QAR 7.4 million).

The above gain on equity investment are resulting from investment in private eguity business as part of business

model of the Bank.

9. INVESTMENT IN REAL ESTATE

The table below summarizes the movement in investments in real estate during the year:

31 December

31 December

2024 2023
At the beginning of the year 264,262 225368
(Disposal) / addition (278,149) 25,000
Transferred from assets held-for-sale 290,307 -
Fair value gain / {loss) on re-measurement of investments in real estate (6,396) 13.894
At the end of the year 270,024 264,262

During the year, the Bank exited its investment in real estate located in Al Messila, State of Qatar and recognized
a disposal gain of QAR 13.9 million in the statement of income for the year ended 31 December 2024, Furthermore,

Investment in real éstate aré reciassified to continuing operations (refer to note 12).
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10. FIXED ASSETS

Capital
Furniture Motor _Right of working In
Equipment  and fixture vehicles  use assets progress Total
Cost
A5 at 1 January 2024 214 12,223 870 10414 376 254997
Additions 24 a6 - - 142 262
Transferred from Capital working in progress - 210 - - {210} -
Transferréd tointangible assets - - - - {308} {308)
Disposals - - (160) - - (160)
As at 31 December 2024 2,138 12,529 710 10,414 - 25,791
Accurmmulated depreclation
As at 1 January 2024 (720} {3,029} {(475) (4.377) - (8,601)
Depreciation.charge (706} (Z480) (170) (2,131) - {5,487}
Disposals - - 44 - - 44
As at 31 December 2024 (1,426) {5,509} {601) (6,508) - {14,044)
Net book value as at 31 December 2024 Hz 7.020 109 3,906 - 11747
Caost
As at 1 January 2023 18,158 11,930 913 10,492 120 41673
Additions 510 250 160 . 376 1,296
Transferred from Capital working in progress B 51 - - (120} (69}
-Adjustments 19 B {33} {78} - (92)
Disposals (16.573) (8) {1703 - {16,751}
As at 31 December 2023 214 12223 870 044 376 25,997
Accumulated depreclation
As at 1 January 2023 {16,667) (601) (335) {2,448} - {26,051)
Depreciation charge. {596) {2,435) (249} {1,92%) - {5.209)
Adjustrnents (28) - 33 - - 5
Disposals 16,571 7 76 - - 16,654
As at 31 December 2023 {720) {3,029} {475} (4.377) ~ (8,601}
Net book vajue as at 31 December 2073 1394 9,194 395 6.037 376 17396
11. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
31 December 31 December
2024 2023
Cost:
At the beginning of the year 38,385 36,862
Additions during the year 542 1523
Transferred from capital work in progress 308 -
Transferred from Assets Held-for-sale 16,918 -
At the end of the year 56,153 38,385
Amortisation
At the beginning of the year (35.831) (34,971
Amortisation charge for the year (1,667) (920)
Transferred from Assets Held-for-sale {1,036) -
At the end of the year (38,534} {35,831
Net book value
At the beginning of the year 2554 1,951
At the end of the year 17,619 2554
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12. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF DISPOSAL GROUPS CLASS!IFIED AS HELD-FOR-SALE

Assets.and liabilities of disposal groups classified as held-for-sale comprise of:

31 December 31 December

2024 2023

Assets of disposal groups classified as held-for-sale - 296,788
Equity investments held-for-sale 83,106 90,515
Total 83,106 387,303
Liabilities of disposal group classified as hetd-for-sale 13,723 112220

121 Assets and liabilities of Real Estate Structures

Asa part of its business, the Bank from time to time enters into various structures to invest indirectly in real estate
properties using special purpose vehicles ("SPV"} with an intention to sell substantial part of it to investars, Until
the Bank ceases its control over those SPVs, they are consolidated by the Bank in accordance with FAS 23 whereby
an entity needs to consolidate an SPV based an economic substance despite the fact that-the SPY is not legally
owned by and not legally related to the Bank. The financings of these SPVs related to the real estate property have
no recourse to the Bank.

(a) US Real Estate Structires
In 2019, the Bank entered into a structure to invest in real estate within the United States of America and indirectly
acquired 98.04% In reat estate property (the “Fairview™}.

(b) UK Real Estate Structures

In 2017, the Bank entered into a structure to invest indirectly to acquire 100% in a real estate property in the
Unijted Kingdom (the “UK Réal Estate Structure™}. The real estate was financed partly by the Bank through a
Murabaha contract with an option to acquire the underlying real estate: As of 31st December 2024, the Bank had
sold a 71% stake out of 100% in the UK Real Estate Structure to its investors.

During the year, these investments are reclassified to continuing operations and the financial results of the above
Real Estate Structures are consolidated ling by line in these consolidated financial statements.

12.2  Assets and labilities of Private Equity Structure

As part of its business, the Bank from time to time enters various structures to invest indirectly in private equity
investrment using special purpose vehicles (*SPV") with an intention to sell substantial part of it to investors. In
2022, the Bank entered into a structure to invest in a private equity within Europe. The remaining unsold portion
of QAR 83.1 million has been classified as assets held for sale in the consolidated financial statements.

Acqulsition of private equity structure

{i) The Bank entered into a sale and purchase agreement to acquire the full shares of a foreign bank (Bereke
Bank) located inthe Republiic of Kazakhstan. The Bank has successfully compléted the acquisition of the entire
share capital of "Bereke Bank™ |SC in Kazakhstan and syndicated a 100% stake in the structure to its investors,

(i} The Bankeritered into a structure to invest five Boeing 777-300ER aircraft which are leased to a leading airline
in the region and syndicated a 99.3% stake in the structure to its investors. The remaining stake has been
classified within investment securities {refer to note 8).
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12. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF DISPOSAL GROUPS CLASSIFIED AS HELD-FOR-SALE {Continued)
12.3  Analysis of disposal group assets/iabilities, results and cashflows

(a} Assets and labilities of disposal groups classified as held-for-sale

Analysis of assets and liabilities of disposal groups, which include Real Estate structures are as follows:

31 December 31 December
Note 2024 2023
Assets of disposal groups classified as held-for-sale
Financial assets .
Cash and cash equivalents - 21,047
Accounts receivable - 605 |
Total financial assets - 21,652
Non-financial assets
Investments in real estate - 149,272
Other assets 2.2 83,106 216,379
Total non-financial assets 83,106 365,651
Total assets of disposal groups classified as held for sale 83,106 387,303
Liabilitfes of disposal groups classified as held-for-sale
Financial liabiiities - 84.904
Due to related parties 23 13,723 13,723
Other financial liabilities - 13,593
Total liabilities of disposal groups classified as held for sale 13,723 112,220
Net carrying value 69,383 275,083

(b} Analysis of results of discontinued operations is as follows.
For the year ended

31 December 31 December

2024 2023

Revenue - 29.826

Expenses - (35,999)

Net loss from discontinued operations - {6,173)
Attributable to

- Equity holders of the Bank - (8,276)

- Non-controlling interest - 2103

(c) Analysis of cashflows of discontinued operations is as follows:
For the year ended

31 December 31 December

2024 2023

Operating cash flows - 9,060
Investing cash flows - (16,121}
Financing cash flows - 12,388
- 5327

37




LESHA BANK L.L.C (PUBLIC)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2024 (expressed in QAR'000)

7 LESHA BANK

13. OTHER ASSETS

Other assets comprise the following:

Other non-financial assets
Prepayments
Total other non-financial assets

Other financial assets
Other receivables
Advances for Investments
Due from related parties
Fair value of Sharia-compliant-risk-management instruments
Accrued income
Total other financial assets
Total other assets

14. FINANCING LIABILITIES

Accepted wakala deposits
Murabaha financing

31 December

31 December

Note 2024 2023
1818 2,988

1818 2988

67,475 28.241

30,537 102,401

23 9,100 9,100
26.2 9,124 257
1828 1862

118,064 141.861

119,882 144,849

31 December

31 December

2024 2023
1761698 1747,529
678,267 15,087
2,439,965 1,862,616

As of 31 December 2024, Sukuk investments of nominal value of QAR 697.4 million (2023: 147.8 million) of the

Group have been pledged as security for bank financing liabilities. of QAR 109 million of the Group.

15. OTHER LIABILITIES

Other non-financial liabilities
Advancesand other payables
Unearned revenue

Total other non-financial liabilities

Other financial fiabilities

Accounts payable

Fair value of Sharia-compiiant-risk-management instruments
Staff-related payables

Dividends and Unsubscribed right issue shareholders claim payables

Other payables and accrued expenses
Total other financial liabilities
Total other liabilities

31 December

31 December

Note 2024 2023
64,929 44,693

1,063 -

65,992 44,693

8,050 4.561

26.2 - 20,242
41,433 31,097

8,079 10,669

40,795 37.967

98,357 104,536

164,349 149,229
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16. PARTICIPATORY INVESTMENT ACCOUNTS

a) Bytype
31 December 31 December
2024 2023
Term accounts 2,674,623 2,809,694
Short-term Investment accounts 23 4,488
Profit payable to participatory investments account holders 18,781 12,913
2,693,427 2,827,005

b) By sector

31 December

31 December

2024 2023
Individual 141,005 94.439
Government 2.769 205,986
Corporate 2,549,653 2526670
2,693,427 2,827,095

17. EQUITY

(a) Share Capital

31 December

31 Decernber

2024 2023
Authorized
2,500,000,000 ordinary shares of QAR 1 each 2,500,000 2,500,000
Issued and paid
1.120,000,000 ordinary shares of QAR 1each 1120,000 1,120,000

{b) Legal reserve

In accordance with the Bank’s Articles of Association, up to 10% of the net profit for the year may be transferred
to other reserve each year until this reserve {s equal to 50% of the paid-up share capital. The reserve is not available
to distribution except in the circumstances stipulated in the Bank's Articles of Association. During the year, the
Bank has transferred an amount of QAR 12.8 million to the legal reserve (2023: QAR 9.4 million).

{c) Proposed dividend

The Board of Directors in its meeting held an 26 January 2025 proposed a cash dividend of 5% (2023 Nil) of the
share capital amounting to QAR 56 rniilion (2023: Nil}. This proposal is subject to the approval of the shareholders'
annual general assembily.

18. FEE INCOME

For the year ended

31t December 31 December

2024 2023

Managernent fees 50,780 39,461
Advisory fees 6,395 -
Placement & Structuring fees (including exit fees) 3,519 21474
60,694 60,935
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19. OTHER INCOME

Rental income from investments in real estate
Financing cost

Net rental income from investment in real estate
Miscetlaneous income

20, OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Professional services
Rent expense
Other

21. BASIC / DILUTED PROFIT PER SHARE

For the year ended

31 December 31 December
2024 2023
27152 17,891
- (196)
27152 17.695
4,670 6,316
31,822 24.01M

For the year ended

31 December 31 December
2024 2023

16,383 11,896

5 -

34,933 9,161

51,321 21,057

The calculation of basic earnings pér share is based on the net profit attributable to the Banks' shareholders and

the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year.

Basic and diluted profit per share

Net profit attributable to the equity holders of the

Bank from continuing operations

Net profit attributable to the equity holders of the

Bank from discontinued operations

Net Profit attributable to the equity holders of the Bank

Total weighted average number of shares (thousand)

Basic and diluted profit per share from continuing eperations - QAR

Basic and diluted profit per share from discontinuéd operations - QAR

Basic and diluted profit per share - QAR

For the year ended

31 December 31 December
2024 2023
128,165 102,664
- {8.276)
128,165 94,388
1,120,000 1,120,000
0.14 0.091
- (0.007)
0.114 0.084

The weighted average number of ordinary shares in thousands have been calculated as fotlows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the year

1120,000 1120.000
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22. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had the foilowing contingent liabilities at the year-end:

Unutilised credit facilities

31 December 31 December
2024 2023
1,145 1
1145 1

Contingent liabilities refated to Shari’a-compiiant-risk-management instiuments as disclosed in Note 26.2.

23. RELATED PARTIES

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant

influence over the other party in making financial and cperating decisions.

Related parties include the significant owners and entities over which the Group and the owners exercise
significant influence, directors and senior management persarinel of the Group, close family members, entities

owned or controlled by them; associates and.affiliated companies.

Balances and transactions in respect of related parties included in the consolidated financial statements are as

follows:

3) Consolidated statement of financial position as at

Other assets
Customers’ baiances
Liabilities held-for-sale

b) Consolidated income statement for the yéar ended

Other operating-expenses

c) Off balance sheet instruments as at

Assets under management

a) Consolidated statement of financial position as at

Financing assets
Other assets
Customers’ balances
Liabilities held-for-sale

b} Consolidated income statement for the year ended

Income from financing assets

Dividend income

Reversal for impairment of financing assets

Other operating expenses

¢) Off balance sheet instruments as at

Asset under management

31 December 2024

Associates Other* Total
- 9,100 9,100
- 30,719 30,719
13,723 - 13,723
- {(1,607) (1,607}
- 155,027 155,027

31 December 2023

Associates Other* Total

7138 - 7,138

- 9,100 9,100

- 22,0086 22,006

13,723 - 13,723
1,127 - 13127

2330 - 2330
{10,012 - (10,0123
- 11,340) {1,340}

- 93173 93173

During the year, the Bank acquired a real estate property in the State of Qatar (the "Qatar Real Estate Structuse”)
for QAR 48 million from a related party through SPE structure. As of 31st December 2024, the Bank had sold a

100% stake in this Structure to its investoers.
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23. RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

* Other related parties include affiliated parties of the board miembers and senior management,

Key management compensation is presented below:
For the year ended

31 December 31 December
2024 2023

Key management personnel compensation :
Senior management personnel 8,307 12,277
Shari‘a Superviscry Board remuneration 500 460
8,807 12,677

Boards of Directors remuneration for the year ended 2024 is QAR 3.1 million (2023: QAR Ni#).

24. ZAKAH

Zakah is directly borne by the equity holders. The Group does not collect or pay Zakah on behalf of its equity
helders in-accordance with the Articles of Association.

25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED RISK MANAGEMENT

25.1  Financial instruments definition and classification

Financial instruments comprise all financial assets and liabilities of the Group. Financial assets include cash and
bank balances, investments carried at amortised cost, financing assets, accounts receivable, investments at fair
value and other financial assets. Financial liabilities include customers’ balances, due to banks and other financial
liabilities. Financial instruments also include contingent Habilities and commitments included in off financial
position items,

Note 4 explains the accounting policies used to recognise and measure the significant financial instruments and
their respective income and expenses items,

25.2  Falr value of financlal Instruments

Fair value js the price that would be received to sefl an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value is determined for each investment individually
in accordance with the valuation policies adopted by the Group as set out in 4.3.

25.3  Risk management
Lesha bank perceives strong risk management capabilities to be the foundation in delivering results to customers,
investors and shareholders. Risk is an inherent part of the Group's business activities.

Our Board of Directors has overall responsibility for éstablishing our risk culture and ensuring that an effective
risk management framework is in place.

The risk management framework of the Bank encapsulates the spirit of the following key principles for Risk
Management as articulated by Basel lil;

Management oversight and control

Risk culture and ownership

Risk recognition and assessment

Confrol activities and segregation of duties

Information and communication

Monitoring Risk Management activities and.correcting deficiencies.
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25, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

25.4  Risk framework and governance

The Group’s risk management process is an integral part of the organization’s culture and is embedded into all its
practices and processes. The Board of Directors (the Board). and a number of Board's subcommittees including
Executive Committee; and Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee; management committees; and executive
management alt contribute to the effective Group wide management of risk.

The Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee is tasked with implementing risk management policies. guidelines and
limits as well as ensuring that monitoring processes are in place. The Risk Management Department provides
independent monitoring to both the Board and the Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee whilst also working closely
with the business units which ultimately own and manage the risks.

25.5  Investment risk

Investment risks are identified and assessed via extensive due diligence activities. conducted by the respective
mvestment departments. The Group's investments in venture capital are by definition in illiquid markets, frequently
in ernerging markets, Such investments cannot generally be hedged or liquidated easily. Consequently, the Group
seeks to mitigate its risks via more direct means. Post-acquisition risk management for private equity investments
Is rigorously exercised, mainly via Board representation within the investee company, during the life of the private
equity transaction. Periodic reviews of all investrnents are undertaken and presented to the Investment Cormmittee
for review. Concerns over risks and performance are addressed via the investment area responsible for managing
the investment under the oversight of the Investment Committee.

Z25.6 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the Group will incur a loss of principal or profit earnéed because its customers, clients or
counterparties fail to discharge their contractual obligations. The Group manages and controis credit risk by setting
limits-on the amount of risk it is willing to accept for individual counterparties, related parties and for geographical
and industry concentrations, and by monitoring exposures in relation to such limits.

The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the relevant components of the financial position.

31 December 31 December

Notes 2024 2023

Balances with banks & 63,734 254074
Placements with financial institutions 6 3,026,096 2,708,828
Investrments in Sukuk 8 2,016,292 1662612
Investrment in funds & 279,180 273,410
Financing assets 7 175,378 88387
Financial assets of disposal group classified as held-for-sale 1213 - 21.652
Other financial assets 72 118,064 141861
5,678,744 5,150,824

The weightings assigned to each macro-economic scenario at the Bank level are based on the Cradit cycle indices
(CCI). and as of 31 Decernber 2024 were 65% to the Base Case, 30% to Downside and 5% to the Upside Case (as of
31 December 2023: 65% to the Base Case, 30% to Downside and 5% to the Upside Case). The situation Is evolving
and accordingly any upside or downside scenarios will be reassessed should the conditions significantly change.
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25, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

25,6.1 Concentration of risks

As an active participant in the banking markets, the Group has a significant concentration of credit risk with other
financial institutions. As at 31 December 2024, the Group had balances with ten counterparty banks (31 December

2023: 9 banks) with aggregated amounts above QAR 100 million. The total aggregate amount of these déposits was
QAR 3,011 million {2023: QAR 2,583 million).

The analysis by geographical region of the Group's financial assets having credit risk is as follows:

31 December 31 December

2024 2023

Qatar ‘3,258,235 2,764.781
Asia and Middle East 1,912,198 1,555,172
North America 54,351 85,063
Europe and others 453,960 745,808
5,678,744 5,150,824

The distribution of financial assets having‘credit risk by industry sector is as follows:

31 December 31 December

2024 2023

Banking and financial services 4,167,102 3,935,086
Sovereign 490,991 457,907
Real Estate 292,053 240521
Consumer Services 266,323 233,663
Qil & Gas 144,891 85180
Aerospace & Defense 132,707 73,303
Utilities 86,764 46,264
Construction 5,279 7378
Others 92,634 71,522
5,678,744 5,150,824

25.6.2 Credit Quality

The credit quality of financial assets is managed by Group using internal and external credit risk ratings. The Group
follows an internal rating mechanism for grading relationship across its credit portfolio.

The Group utilises a scale ranging from 1 to 10 for credit relationship with 1 to 7 denoting performiing grades, 8, 9
and 10 denoting non-performing. All credits are assigned a rating in accordance with defined criteria.

The Group endeavors continuously to #improve upon internal credit risk rating methodclogies and credit risk
management policies and practices to reflect the true underlying credit risk of the portfolio and the credit culture
in the Group. All financing relationships are reviewed at [east once in a year and riore freguently in case of non-
performing assets.
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25, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Collateral

The Group obtains collateral and other credit enhancements in ordinary course of business from counterparties. On
an overall basis, during the year there was no discérnable deterioration in the quality of collaterat held by the Group.,
In addition, there were no changes in collateral policies of the Group.

The fair value of the collateral held against credit-impaired financing assets as at 31 December 2024 is QAR 27.2
miflion (2023: QAR 27.2 million).

Renegotiated financing assets

Restructuring activities include extended payment arrangements, approved external management plans, and
medification and deferral of payments. Restructuring policies and practices are based on indicators or criteria that,
in the judgment of management, indicate that payment will most likely continue. These policies are kept under
continuous review. Renegotiated financing assets as at 31 December 2024 amounted to QAR 32 million (2023: QAR
75.8 milliory).

25.6.3 Repossessed colffateral

Repossessed properties are sold as soon as practicable, with the proceeds used to reduce the outstanding
indebtedness. There were no repossessed properties as at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023,

25.6.4 Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financing asset or an investment in debt-type security bafance, and any related allowances for
impairment losses, when Group determines that the financing asset or security is uncollectible.

This determination is made after considering information such as the occurrence of significant changes in the
financed counterparty’s / issuer’s financial position such that the financed counterparty/ issuer can no longer pay
the obligation, or that proceeds from collateral will not be sufficient to pay back the entire exposure. For smaller
balance standardised financing assets, write-off decisions generally are based ona product-specific past due status.

25.6.5 [nputs, assumptions and techniques used for estimating impairment
Significant increase in credit risk (S/CR)

When determining whether the risk of default on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without
undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis including internal credit
risk grading system, external risk ratings, where available, delinquency status of accounts, credit judgement and,
where possible, relevant historical experience. The Group may alsc determine that an exposure has undergone a
significant increase in credit risk based on particular qualitative indicators that it corisiders are indicative of such and
whose effect may-not'otherwise be fully reflectedin its quantitative analysis on a timely basis.
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25, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

In determining whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition following “criteria are
considered:

Two notches downgrade for rating from 1 to 4 or one notch downgrade for ratings from 5 and 6
Facilities rescheduled during previous twelve months

. Facilities overdue by more than 30 days as at the reporting date, unless rebutted based on other
gualitative supportable information
Any other reason as per management discretion that evidence a significant increase in credit risk

Credit risk grades

Credit risk grades are defined using qualitative and quantitative factors that are indicative of risk of default. These
factors vary depending on the nature of the exposure and the type of financed counterparty. Exposures are subject
to on-going monitoring, which may result in an expesure being moved to a-different credit risk grade,

Generating the term structure of Probability of Default (PD)

The Group employs statistical models to analyse the data collected and generate estimates of PD of exposures and
how these are expected to change as a result of the passage of time. This analysis includes. the identification and
calibration of relationships between changes in default rates and changes in key macro-economic factors, across
various geographies in which the Group has exposures,

Renegotiated financial assets

The centractual terms of a financing may be meodified for a number of reasons, including changing market
conditions, customer retention and other factors not related to a current or potential credit deterioration of the
customer. An existing financing whose terms have been modified may be derecognised and the renegotiated
financing recognised as a new financing at fair value. Where possible, the Group séeks to restructure financing rather
than to take possession of collateral, if available. This may involve extending the payment arrangements and
documenting the agreement of new financing conditions. Management continuously reviews renegotiated financing
to ensure that all criteria are met and that future payments are likely to occur.

The accounts which are restructured due to credit reasons in past 12 manths will be classified under Stage 2.
Definition of default

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when:
the financed counterparty is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse
by the Group to actions such as realising security (if any Is held); or
the financed counterparty is past due more than 90 days on any material credit obligation to the Group,
uniess rebutted based on other qualitative supportable information.
. rated internally as 8, 9 or 10 corresponding to the Qatar Financial Centre Regulatory Authority (QFCRA)
categories of substandard, doubtful and loss, respectively,
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25, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

In assessing whether a financed countérparty is in default, the Group considers indicators that are:
- guantitative - e.g. overdue status and non-payment on anothér obligation of the sarme issuer to the
Group: and
- based on data developed internally and obtained from external sources,

Inputs into the assessment of whether a financial instrument is in default and their significaince may vary over time
to reflect changes in circumstances. The definition of default largely aligns with that applied by the Group for
regulatory capital purposes.

Incorporation of forward-looking information

Incorporating forward-lcoking information increases the level of judgement as to how changes in these
macroeconomic factors will affect the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) applicable to the stage 1 and stage 2 exposures
which are considered as performing. The methodologies and assumptions involved, including any forecasts of future
economic conditions, are reviewed periodically.

Forward-fooking informatfon incorporated in the £CL. models

The assessment of SICR and the calculation of ECL both incorporate forward-looking information. The Group has
performed historical analysis and identified the key economic variables affecting credit risk and expected credit
losses for each portfolig.

These econormic variables and their associated impact on the PD, EAD and LGD vary by financial instrument, Expert
judgment has also been applied in this process. Forecasts of these economic variables (the "basé economic
scenario”) are updated from the World economic outlook: IMF country data and other reliable sources which provide
the best astimate view of the economy over the next five years.

Economic variable assumptions

The most significant period-end assumption used for the ECL estimate as at 31 December 2024 was GDP (2024:1.9%,
2025: 5.8%).

Measurement of ECL

The key inputs into the measurerment of ECL are the term structure of the following variables:
e probability of default (PD);
e [oss given defauit (LGD);
¢ exposure at default {EAD).

These parameters are generally derived from internally developed statistical models and other historical data. They
are adiusted to refiect forward-looking information as described above,
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25, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

PD estimates are estimates-at a certain date, which are calculated based on statistical rating models These statistical
models are based on interndlly compiled data comprising both guantitative .and qualitative factors .and are
supplemented by external PD data where available.

LGD is the magnitude of the likely loss if there is a default. The Group estimates LGD parameters based on the history
of recovery rates of claims against defaulted counterparties. The LGD models consider the forecasted collateral value
and the Group assumes that haircut percentage applied to Collateral value as per QFCRA.

LGD estimation includes:

s  Recovery Rate: Defined as the ratio of liquidation value to market value of the underlying collateral at the
time of default. It wduld also account for expected recovery rate from a general claim on the individual's
assets for the unsecured portion of the exposure.

¢ Discounting Rate: Defined as. the opportunity cost of the recovery value not being realized on the day of
default adjusted for time. value,

EAD represents the expected exposure in the event of a default. The Group derives the EAD from the current
exposure to the counterparty and potential changes to the current amount allowed under the contract including
amortisation. The EAD of a financial asset is its gross carrying amount.

For lending commitments and financial guarantees, the EAD inciudes the amount drawn, as well as potential future
amaounts that may be drawn under the contract, which are estimated based on historical observations and forward-
looking forecasts.

Loss aflowance
The following tables show reconciliations from the opening to the closing balance of the loss allowance by class of

financial instruments, Comparative amounts represent allowance account for credit Josses and refiect measurement
basis under relevant FAS.
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25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED RISK MANAGEMENT {Continued)

25.7  Llquldity risk and funding management

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Group will not have sufficient funds available to meet its financial fiabilities
as they fall due. The Group's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure that it will always have sufficient liquidity to
meet its liabilities when due under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or
risking damage to the Group’s reputation.

The Treasury department collects information regarding the liquidity profile of thé Bank's financial assets and
liabilities and details of other projected cash flows arising from projected future business. The Treasury Department
then maintains a portfolio of short-term liquid assets to ensure that sufficient liguidity is maintained within the Bank
as a whole.

All iquidity policies and procedures are subject to review and approval by Assets-Liabilities Management Committee.
(ALCO) which also regularly receives reports relating to the Bank's liquidity position.

Below table summarises undiscounted cash outflows of financial Habitities:

31 December 31 December

2024 2023

On demand 189,210 . 129,904
Less than 3 months 1768,543 1,760,806
3to 6 months 193,642 58.260
6 to 12 months 2,070,408 5176
1to 5 years 1,405,641 3,269,183
Total 5627444 5223329
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25, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

25.8 Markef risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to adverse
changes in market variables such as profit rates, foreign exchange rates, equity prices and commodities. The Group
classifies exposures to market risk into either listed or non- listed corporate investments.

25.8.1 Profitrate risk
Profit rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in profit rates will affect future cash flows or the fair values
of the financial instruments. The Group's current exposure to profit rate risk is limited to the following:

° The Group’s placement with the financial institutions (classified as ‘Placements with financial institutions'):

° The Group’s investment pertfolie of Sukuk {classified as “Investments at amortised cost™ and “Investments
at fair value through equity™);

e The Group's investments in Murabaha {classified as *Financing assets"}; and

e Financing received by the Group from financial institutions {classified as “Financing liabilities").

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a 104 basis point {bp} change in profit rates, with all other
variables held constant. The effect of decreases in profit rate is expected to be equal and opposite to the effect of
the increases shown.

31 December Change in basis Effect on net
2024 points (+)  profit/loss (/)
Assets
Placements with financial institutions 3,026,345 100 30,263
[nvestrments in sukitk 2025446 100 20,254
Investment in funds carrigd at fair value 279,180 100 2,792
Financing assets 175,378 100 1754
Liabilities and Equity of unrestricted invastment account holders
Financing liabitities 2,439,965 100 (24,400)
Financial liabilities of disposal group classified as held-for-sale - 100 -
Participatory investment accounts 2693427 100 {26,934}
31 December Change in basis Effect on net
2023 points {+/-)  profit/loss (+/}
Assets
Piacernents with financial institutions 2,705,186 100 27052
Investments in sukuk 1.662.612 100 16526
Investrnent in funds cafried at fair value 273410 100 2734
Financing assets 88,387 100 884
Liabilities and Equity of unrestricted investment account holders
Financing Habitities 1862616 100 (18,626}
Financial liabilities of disposal group classified as held-for-sale 84,904 100 (849)
Participatory investment accounts 2827095 100 (28,271}
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25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued}

25.8.2 Forelgn exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to adverse changes in
foreign exchange rates. The Board has set limits on positions by currency. Positions are monitored reqularly to
ensure that poesitions are maintained within established limits,

The table below indicates the currencies that are pegged to the Qatari Riyal and, hence the foreign exchange risk for
the Group in respect of these currencies is minimal.
Exposure (QAR eguivalent)

31 December 31 December
Currency 2024 2023
usD 1,862,631 1.583,903
USD pegged currencies 12,267 1,651

The table below shows the impact of a 5% movement in the currency rate, for other than those pegged to the Qatari
Riyal, against the Qatari Riyal, with all other variables held constant on the consolidated income statement and the
consolidated staterment of changes in Owners’ equity. The effect of decreases in the currency rates is expected to
be equal and opposite to the effect of the increases shown.

Exposure {QAR equivalent) Effect on net profit (+/~)
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
Currency 2024 2023 2024 2023
GBP {17,301) 3,968 {865) 198
EUR 1.618 (1,743} 81 {87)
KWD 32 32 2 2

25.8.3 Commodities price risk
The Group does not currently have commodities portfolios: hence it has no exposure to commodity price risks.

25.9 Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from systems and control failures, fraud and human errors, which can result
in financial and reputation loss, and legal and regulatory consequences. The Group manages operational risk through
appropriate controls, instituting segregation of duties and internat chécks and balances, including internal audit and
compliance, The Risk Management Department facilitates the management of operational risk by way of assisting in
the identification of, monitoring and managing of operational risk in the Bank.

25.10 Concentration risk

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the
same geographic region, or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual
obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations indicate
the relative sensitivity of the Group’s performance to developrnents affecting a particular industry or geographicai
location or individual obligor.
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25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

25.11 Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to ensure that the Group camplies with regutatory
capital requirements and that the Group maintains healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and to
maximise Owners' value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of its activities. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the amount of dividend payment to Owneérs, return capital to Owners or issue new capital. The QFCRA sets and
rhonitors capital requirements for the Group as a whole. In implementing current capital réquirements, the QFCRA
requires the Group to maintain a minimurm capital adequacy ratio as prescribed by the Isflamic Banking Business
Prudential Rules of 2015.

The Group’s capital resources are divided into two tiers:

» Tier 1 capital, which includes ordinary share capital, share premium, retained earnings and non-controiling
interest after deductions for goodwill and intangible assets, and other regulatory adjustments relating to
items that are included in equity but are treated differently for capital adeguacy purposes.

. Tier 2 capital, which includes the fair value reserve relating to unrealised gains on equity instruments
classified as investments at fair value through equity and currency transiation reserve:

Other deductions from capital include the carrying amounts of investrents in subsidiaries that are not included in
the regulatory consolidation, investments in the capital of banks and certain other regulatory items. Risk-weighted
assets are determined according to specified requirements that seek to reflect the varying levels of risk attached to
assets and off- financial pasition exposures.

The Group’s policy is at all times to meet or exceed the capital requirements determined by the QFCRA. There have
been no material changes in the Groug's management of capital during the year.

The Group's capital adequacy ratio (the "CAR"}, calculated in accordance with the capital adequacy guidelines issued
by the QFCRA, is as foliows:

31 December 31 Decernber

2024 2023

Total risk weighted assets 7403235 6,376,132
Share capital 1,120,000 1.120.000
Share premium 80,003 80,003
Other reserve 22,256 9,439
‘Retained earnings 142,735 30,206
Non-controlling interest {18,200) {9,402}
intangible assets (17,619) (2,554)
Other adjustments (58,682) 12,580
Total qualifying capital and reserve funds 1,270,493 1,240,272

Total capital resources expressed asa percentage of

total risk weighted assets 17.16% 19.45%

The Bank is subject to a mintmum regulatory CAR of 12.5% comprising of Tier 1 and Tier 2 Capital Ratio of 8%,
capital conservation buffer of 2.5% and an ICAAP buffer of 2.0%.,
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26. SHARI’A-COMPLIANT-RISK-MANAGEMENT INSTRUMENTS
26.1  Profit rate swap

Swaps are commitments to exchange oné set of cash flows for another. In the case of profit rate swaps.
counterparties generally exchange fixed and floating profit payments in a single currency without exchanging,
principal.

26.2 Unilateral promise to buy/sell currencies

Unilateral promises to buy/sell currencies are promises t6 either buy or seil a specified currency at a specific price
and date in the future. The actial transactions are executed on the promise execution dates, by exchanging the
purchase/sale offers and acceptances between the relevant parties. The table below shows the positive and
negative fair values of Shari'a-compliant-risk-managernent financial instruments together with the notional
amounts analysed by the term to maturity. The notional amounts, which provide an indication of the volumes of
the transactions outstanding at-the year-end, do not necessarily reflect the amounts of future cash flows involved
ard the credit and market risk, which can be identified from the derivatives fair value.

Positive Negative Notional Lessthan3 3to12

31 December 2024 fair vatue fair value amount months months

Unilateral promise to buy/ sell currencies 9124 - 1,235,425 1,195,450 39,975

9124 - 1235425 1195450 39,975

Positive Negative Notionai  Less than3 3to12

31 Decernber 2023 fair value fair value amount months rmonths
Unilateral promise to buy/ sell currencies 256 {20242} 995117 ‘995,117 -

256 (20242) 995117 995,117 -

Unrealised fair value gain/loss arising from Shari'a-compliant-risk management instruments were recognized in
these consolidation financial staternents as required by IFRS; however, as per requirement of Shari'a principles
gains/losses are realised when actual transactions / settlements happen.
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27. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group's financial instruments are accounted for under the historical cost method with the exception of
investments at fair value. By contrast, the fair value represents the price that would he received to sell an asset,
or paid to transfer a liability, in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
Differences therefare can arise between baock vafugs under the historical cost method and fair value estimates.
Underlying the definition of fair vaiue is the presumption that the Group is a going concern without any intention
or requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operation or to undertake a transaction on adverse terms.
Generally accepted methods of determining fair value include reference to quoted prices and the use of vaiuation
techniques such as discounted cash flow analysis.

Fair value hierarchy

Fair value measurements are analysed by level in the fair value hierarchy as follows:

{i) level one are measurements at quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities,
(if) level two measurements are valuations techniques with all material inputs observable for the asset or

liability, either directly {that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices), and

(iii) level three measurements are valuations not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs). Management applies judgment in categorising financial instruments using the fair value
hierarchy. If a fair value measurement uses observable inputs that require significant adjustment, that
measurement is a Level 3 measurement.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

31 December 2024

Investments carried at fair vaiue

- at fair vatue through equity 2,026,473 - 79,973 2106446
- at fair value through income statement - - 627,424 627424
Investments in real estate carried at fair value - - 270,024 270,024
Investments in funds carried at fair valug 80,153 - 199,027 279,180
Net gains and losses included in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity (5,638) - {13,894) (19,532)
Net gains and losses included in the consolidated

income statement 4,587 - (23,827) (19,240}
31 Decemnber 2023

Ifvestments carried at fair value

- at fair value through equity 1,561,946 - 79385 1641331
- at Fair value through income statement 3214 - 421,764 424,978
Investrments in real estate carried at fair value - - 264.262 264,262
Investments in funds carried at fair value 78.850 - 194,560 273410
31 Decernber 2023

Net gains and losses included in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity 26,593 - (15,097} 11,496
Net gains and losses included in the consolidated

income statement 1556 - 20.918 22,474
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27, FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Shari’a-compliant-risk-management instruments related assets and liabilities, as disclosed i Note 26, helong to
level 2 fair value hierarchy.

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities carried at amortised cost are equal to the carrying value,
hence, not included in the fair value hierarchy table, except for investments carried at amortised cost-for which
the fair value amounts to QAR 43.3 million (31 December 2023: QAR 101.0 million) and is derived using Level 1 fair
value hierarchy.

Valuation technique used in the fairvalue measurement at 31 December 2024 and 2023 for level 3 investments included
Discounted Cash flow and Market approach. The below table summarises the inputs used discounted cash flow
technigue:

Valuation Range of inputs
technigue [nputs used 2024 2023
Investrments at fair value through Discounted Growth rate 3% to 4% 1.5% to 3.5%
income statement cash flows Discount rate  10.45% to 11.31%  13.4%t0 15.4%

Movermnents in level 3 financial instruments
The following table shows the reconciliation of the opening and closing amount of Level 3 investments. which are
recorded at fair value:

Total gain / {losses)

recorded in At 31
At 1january consolidated income December
2024 statement fequity Additions Disposals 2024
Equity investments
- at fair value through equity 758,385 {4,511) 5,095 - 79,973
- at fair value through income statement 616,324 {27,625) 372,607 (134,855) 826,451
695,709 (32,136} 377,706 {134,855) 906,424
Total gain / (losses)
recorded in At 3t
At 1January consolidated income December
2023 staternent /equity Additions Disposals 2023
Equity investments
-at fair value through equity 99,458 (28.991) 8.918 - 79,385
- at fair value through income statement 585,254 20920 139,066 (128.916) 616,324
684712 (8.071) 147.984 (128.916) 695,709

Transfers between level 1, level 2 and fevel 3
There were no transfers between the levels during the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023 none).
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28, SEGMENT INFORMATICON

For'management purposes, the Group has three broad reportable segments, as described below. The repartable
segments offer different products and services and are managed separately based on the Group’s management
and internal reporting structure. For each of the reportable segments, the management reviews internal reports
periodically. The following summary describes the operations in each of the Group’s reportable segments:

Alternative [nvestments

The Group's altérnative investments business segment includes direct investment in the venture capital business
direct private equity. Alternative investments business is primarily responsibie for acquiring large or significant
stakes. with board representation. in well managed companies and assets that have strong, established market
positions and the potential to develop and expand. The team works as partners with the management of investee
companies to unlock value through enhancing operational and financial performance in order to maximize
returns. This segment seeks investments opportun'i_tées in growth sectors within the GCC and MENA region, as well
as. United States. Furope and Southeast Asia but remains opportunistic t& attractive investment propositions
outside of the geographies identified.

Private Bank

The Group's private bank business segment includes private banking, corporate & institutional banking and
treasury & investment management services, The Private banking department targets qualified High Net Worth
clients with Shari'a compliant up-market products and services that address personal, business and weaith
requirements. The services offered under the private banking department include advisory. deposit accounts,
brokerage, funds and investrments, treasury Forex products, piain vanilla & specialized financing and Elite services.
The corporate & institutional banking department offers deposits accounts and plain vaniila & specialized financing
solutions for corporates in Qatar, the GCC and the broader region for sectors and applications currently
underserved by regional banks, The treasury department is offering short term liquid investments and FX
products to banking clients, deploying the bank's liquidity as well as leading the product development and idea
conceptualization function.

Other
This segment includes investment property from where the bank derives ljarah rentals. Associated costs including
financing cost for the investment praperty are also build up in this segment.

Information regarding the results, assets and liabilities of each reportablé segment is included below.
Performance is measured based on segment profit before tax, as included in the internal management reports
that.are reviewed by the management.

Segment assets and liabilities

The Group does not monitor segments based on segment assets and liabilities and does not possess detailed
information thereof. Conseguently, disclosure of segment assets and liabilities are not presented in these
consolidated financial statements.
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28. SEGMENT INFORMATION {Continued)

Below is the information about operating segments;

For the year ended 31 December 2024

INCOME

income from financing assets

income frorm placements with financial institutions
Profit on Sukuk investments

Profit on the financing fiabilities

Net income from financing assets

Fee income

Dividend income

Gain/ (loss} on re-measurement of investments at
fair value through income statement

Fair value loss on re-measurement of

invéstments in real estate

Gain on disposal of Sukuk investments

Gain on disposal of equity investrnents
‘Gain {loss} from disposal of real estate Investments
Net foreign exchange gain

Other income, net

TOTAL INCOME

EXPENSES

Staff costs

Depreciation and amortization

Other operating expenses

TOTAL EXPENSES

(Provision for) / reversal of impairment on financing
assets, riet of recoveries

Reversal of impairment on other financial assets
Provision for impairment on investments

PROFIT BEFORE TAX AND ATTRIBUTION TO QUASI-EQUITY
Less: Net profit attributable to quasi-equity

PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

Income tax expense

NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Alternative
Invastments  Private Bank Other Total
538 5,995 - 6,533
- 190,029 - 190,029
- 109,254 - 109,254
- {123,481) - {(123.,481)
538 181797 - 182,335
25209 35,485 - 60,694
9,728 14,654 = 24,382
257 {r) - 186
- (6,396) - {6,396)
- 569 - 569
81,965 2,602 - 84567
- 912 - 912
4,240 1327 - 5,567
3341 28,481 - 31822
125278 259,360 - 384,638
(2,899) (72,654) - {75,553)
(1431) (5723) - (7.154)
(9,664) (41,657) - {51.321)
(13,994) (120,034} - (134,028)
5840 (14,093) - {8,253)
- 2,135 - 2,135
- (11,100) - {1.100)
n7.124 116,268 - 2333092
- (114,025) - (14,025)
17,124 2243 - 119,367
n71z4 2,243 - 19,367
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28. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023 Aiternative )

: Investrments Private Bank QOther Total

INCOME
Income from financing assets 1325 10,297 - 1,422
Income from ptacements with financial institutions - 133.012 - 133.012
Profit on Sukuk investments - 72,597 - 72597
Profit on the financing liabilities “ {55,694} - (55.694)
Net Income from financing assets 1125 160,212 - 161,337
Fee Income 25,088 35,847 - 60,935
Dividend-income 410 16,713 - 20,823
Loss on re-measurement of investments.
at fair value through income statement {3.047) 8.916 - 5,869
Loss on disposal of sukuk investments 7387 - - 7.387
Net foreign exchange gain / (loss) 413 3455 - 7668
Other income 1,004 5,312 17,693 24,011
TOTAL INCOME 39.880 230455 17,695 288,030
EXPENSES
Staff costs {2.320) (63,756} - (66.076)
Depreciation and armortization (1.226) (4.290} {613} {6.125)
Other operating expenses 4.21) {15,793} (1,053) (21,057}
TOTAL EXPENSES (7.757) {83,839) (1.666) {93,262}
Reversal of impairment on financing assets.
net of recoveries 9,711 {11.551) - {1.840)
Reversal of impairment on other financiai assets . 2706 - 2,706
PROFIT BEFORE TAX AND ATTRIBUTION TO QUASI-EQUITY 47,834 13771 16.029 195,634
Less; Net profit attributable to quasi-equity - (92,970} - {92,970)
PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 41834 44,801 16.029 102,664
Income tax expense - - " -
NET PROFIT FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 41,834 44801 16,029 102,664
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
Profit from discontinued operations, net of tax 4amnz2 {10.285} - (6,173}
NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 45,946 34,516 16,029 96,491
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28, SEGMENT INFORMATION {Continued)

Geographical segment information

The Group currently monitors its operations in two geographi¢ markets namely Qatar and other countries. The
following tables show the distribution of the Group’s net income by geographical segments, based an the location
in which the transactions are recorded during the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2024 Qatar Others Total
INCOME

Income from financing assets 5292 1,241 6,533

Income from placements with financial institutions 190,029 - 190,029

Profit on Sukuk investments 4324 104,930 109,254

Profit on the financing liabilities {96,723) (26,758) (123,48%)
Net income from financing assets 102,922 79,413 182,335

Fee income 58,201 2,493 60,694

Dividend income 5468 18,914 24382

Gain on re-measurement of investments at

fair value through'income statement 1302 (1,116} 186

Fair value loss on re-measurement of investments in real estate - (6,396) {6,396)
Loss on dispasal of sukuk investments 569 - 569
Gain on disposal of equity investments 29145 55,422 84567

Gain (loss) from disposal of real estate Investments 13,833 {13,021) 912

Net foreign exchange gain 5,567 - 5,567

Other income, net 31,822 - 31,822

TOTAL INCOME 248929 135,709 384638

EXPENSES

Staff costs (75,553} - (75,553)
Depreciation and amortisation (7,154) - (_7,154)
Other operating expenses (51,321) - (51,321)
TOTAL EXPENSES (134,028) - (134,028}
(Provision for) / reversal of impairment on (14,093) 5840 (8,253)
Reversal of impairment on other financial assets 2135 - 2135

Other provisions {11,100) - {11.100)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX AND ATTRIBUTION TO QUASI-EQUITY 91,843 141549 233,392

Less; Net 'profit attributabie to quasi-equity {114,025) - (114,025)
PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX (22,182) 141,549 119,367

Income tax expense - - -

NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (22,182) 141,549 119.367
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28. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 Qatar Others Total
INCOME

Income from financing assets 10,297 1,125 1,422

Income from placements with financial institutions 133,012 - 133,012

Profit on Sukuk investments 2799 69,798 72,597

Profit on the financing liabilities (55,694) - (55,694)
Net income from financing assets 90,414 70,923 161,337

Fee income 47407 13,528 60,935

Dividend income 4,367 16,456 20,823

Gain on re-measurement of investments at fair

value through income statement 1.029 4,840 5.869

Gain on disposal of equity investments 7,387 - 7387

Net foreign exchange gain 7668 - 7,668

Other income, net 24.0M - 24011

TOTAL INCOME 182,283 105,747 288,030

EXPENSES

Staff costs (66,076) - {66,076)
Depreciation-and amortization (6,129) - {(6,129)
Other operating expenses {21,057) - {21,057}
TOTAL EXPENSES {93,262) - (93,262}
(Provision for} / reversat of impairment on

financing assets, net of recoveries (11,551) 8./Mm (1.840)
Reversal of impairment on other financial assets 2706 - 2706

PROFIT BEFORE TAX AND ATTRIBUTION TO QUASI-EQUITY 80,176 15,458 195,634

Less: Net profit attributable to quasi-equity (92,870} - {92,970)
PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX (12.794) 115,458 102,664

Incorne tax expense -

NET INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS (12.794) 15458 102,664

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Profit from discontinued operations, net of tax 412 {10,285) {6,173)
NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (8.682) 105,173 96,491
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